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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
SEC FORM 20-IS 

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20 
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE 

 
 
1. Check the appropriate box: 
 

[ / ]    Preliminary Information Statement 
[   ]    Definitive Information Statement 
 

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its Charter:  LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION 
 
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization:  MAKATI CITY, PHILIPPINES 
 
4. SEC Identification Number:  13174 
 
5. BIR Tax Identification Code: 321-000-108-278-000 
 
6. Address of Principal Office:  26F, West Tower, PSE Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas, Pasig City, 1605 

 
7. Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:  (632) 687-03-70 
 
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders: 

Date   -  27 July 2012 
Time   - 2:00 p.m. 
Place   - Astoria Plaza, Escriva Drive, Ortigas, Pasig City 
 

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders: 06 July 2012 
 
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA (information on number of 

shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants) 
 

Title of Each Class  Number of Shares of Common Stock 
              Outstanding and amount of Debt Outstanding 

 
Common Stock  999,877,094/ Not applicable (includes 18,330,500 shares acquired by AB Leisure  

Exponent, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the registrant) 
 
11. Are any of the registrant’s securities listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange? 
 

___/___ Yes    ______ No 
 

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:    
 

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, Common shares 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING 
 
TO ALL STOCKHOLDERS: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of Leisure & Resorts World Corporation (the “Corporation”) 
will be held on July 27, 2012 at 2:00 p.m., Astoria Plaza, Escriva Drive, Ortigas, Pasig City. Registration will start at 1:00 p.m. The 
agenda of the meeting will be as follows: 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Proof of Notice 
 
3. Determination of Quorum 
 
4.     Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting held on July 29, 2011 
 
5.  Management Report           
 
6  Approval of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statement for the fiscal year 2011 and Ratification of actions taken by the 

Board of Directors and Officers since the last annual meeting held on July 29, 2011 
 
7. Nomination and Election of Directors 
 
8.  Appointment of External Auditor 
 
9.  Other Matters 
 
10.  Adjournment 
 
For the purpose of the meeting, only stockholders of record at the close of business on June 27, 2012 will be entitled to vote thereat. 
 
Stockholders who cannot attend the meeting in person may designate their authorized representative by submitting a Proxy 
instrument in accordance with Sec. 58 of the Corporation Code. Validation of the proxies shall be held on July 20, 2012 at the office of 
the Corporation’s transfer agent, Stock Transfer Services, Inc., Unit 34-D Rufino Pacific Tower, 6784 Ayala Avenue, Makati City. 
 
To facilitate your registration of attendance, please have available some form of identification such as company I.D., passport or 
driver’s license. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
Pasig City. June 6, 2012. 
 
 
        

 FOR THE BOARD 

     
             

 RAUL G. GERODIAS 
          Corporate Secretary 
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INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT 
 
A. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders 
 
 (a) Date -  July 27, 2012 
   Time - 2:00 p.m. 
   Place - Astoria Plaza, Escriva Drive, Ortigas, Pasig City 
   Principal Office - 26F West Tower, PSE Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas, Pasig City 
 

(b) Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders:  July 6, 2012 
 

Item 2. Dissenter’s Right of Appraisal: The appraisal right is generally available in the instances stated in Section 81 of the 
Corporation Code as follows: 

 
(1) In any case amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting the rights of any 

stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any 
class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence. 

 
(2) In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of the 

corporate property and assets as provided in the Corporation Code; 
 

(3) In case of merger or consolidation. 
 

In the foregoing instances, any stockholder of the registrant may exercise his right of appraisal right in the manner provided 
below: 
 
(a) A stockholder must have voted against the proposed corporate action in order to avail himself of the appraisal right. 
 
(b) The dissenting stockholder shall make a written demand on the registrant for payment of the fair value of his shares 

within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken.  The failure of the stockholder to make the demand 
within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. 

 
(c) If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the registrant shall pay to such dissenting stockholder 

upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares within ten (10) days after demand thereof, provided 
the registrant has unrestricted retained earnings; and 

 
(d) Upon payment of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the registrant. 

 
.   In the present meeting, there are no matters to be acted upon which may give rise to any stockholder’s exercise of his right 

of appraisal. 
 
Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon:  There are no matters to be acted upon 

which a director, or officer of the registrant, each nominee for election as a director or each associate of any of the foregoing 
persons, have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise. 

 
 
B.  CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION 
 
Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders thereof 
          

(a) Number of Shares Outstanding and entitled to be voted at the meeting: 981,546,594 common stock (as of July 6, 
2012), net of 18,330,500 shares acquired by AB Leisure Exponent, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the registrant. 

 
  Number of votes to which each share is entitled: One (1) vote per share 
 
(b) All stockholders of record as of June 27, 2012 are entitled to notice and to vote at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. 
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(c) Manner of Voting: Each stockholder of record as of June 27, 2012 shall have the right to vote in person or by proxy 
the number of shares of stock held in his name.  In the election of directors, each stockholder entitled to vote, may 
vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said 
shares and give one (1) candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number 
of his shares, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit. 

 
 (d) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management 

 
(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners (more than 5%) 
 

Title of Class 
(As of March 
31, 2012) 

 
Name and address of Record 
Owner and Relationship with Issuer 

Name of Beneficial 
Owner and 
Relationship with 
Record Holder 

Citizenship No. of Shares 
Held 

 
Percent- 
age Held 

Common  PCD Nominee Corp. (Filipino) 
37/F Tower I, The Enterprise Center  
6766 Ayala Avenue corner Paseo de 
Roxas, Makati City 
Stockholder 

             * 
 

 Filipino ® 582,462,084  58.25% 

Common Grandshares Inc. 
2809 Raffles Corporate Center, Emerald 
Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 
Stockholder 

Record Holder 
same as Beneficial 
Owner 
 

Filipino ® 100,000,000 10.00% 

Common Zoraymee Holdings, Inc. 
21/F Wynsum Corporate Plaza, Emerald 
Avenue, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 
Stockholder 

Record Holder 
same as Beneficial 
Owner 

 Filipino ®   86,977,358   8.70% 

Common Alfredo Abelardo Benitez 
26/F West Tower, PSE Center, Ortigas 
Center, Pasig City 
Stockholder 

Record Holder 
same as Beneficial 
Owner 

Filipino ®   68,319,999   6.83% 

 
None of the common shares registered under the name of PCD Nominee Corporation owns more than 5% of the 
Company’s common stock.  PCD Nominee Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Philippine Central 
Depository and is the registered owner of the shares in the books of the Stock Transfer Service, Inc., the transfer 
agent of the registrant, and holds the shares in behalf of the beneficial owners. 

 
Mr. Alfredo Abelardo Benitez, one of the major shareholders of the registrant owns 93.9% of the total issued and 
outstanding capital stock of Zoraymee Holdings, Inc. He has been authorized to exercise voting power over the 
shares of Zoraymee Holdings, Inc. 

 
(2) Security Ownership of Management (other than as Nominees) 

 
Title of Class 

(As of March 31, 
2012) 

 
Name and address of Beneficial Owner 

 
Amount and nature of 
beneficial ownership Citizenship 

 
Percentage of 

Ownership 
Common Willy N. Ocier 

32 Wilson Street, Greenhills, San Juan 
      1,771,000  (direct) 
         860,000  (indirect) 

Filipino    0.27% 

Common Geoffrey L. Uymatiao 
2703 West Tower, Phil. Stock Exchange 
Bldg. Exchange Road Cor Pearl Drive, 
Ortigas Center, Pasig City 

             1,100  (direct) 
         844,801  (indirect) 

Filipino    0.08% 

Common Wilson L. Sy 
2703 Philippine Stock Exchange Center, 
Exchange Road, Ortigas, Pasig City 

      1,905,500  (direct) Filipino 0.19% 
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Common Eusebio H. Tanco 
543 Fordham Street, Wack-Wack Village, 
Mandaluyong City 

                    1 (direct) 
             6,400 (indirect) 

Filipino nil 

Common Clarita T. Zarraga 
26 Santan Street, Tahanan Village, 
Parañaque City 

                    1 (direct) 
             5,500 (indirect) 

Filipino nil 

Common All Other Directors and Officers as a group 
 

                  14  (direct) Filipino nil 

Aggregate ownership of all directors and officers as a group unnamed:  5,394,317 
 

(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More 
 

   No person holds more than five percent (5%) of a class under voting trust or similar arrangement. 
 

(4) Change in Control 
 

There are no arrangements, which may result in a change in control of the registrant. The following 
former shareholders of AB Leisure Exponent, Inc., as a group, own 18.42% of the registrant, namely: 
 
1. Alfredo Abelardo B. Benitez 
2. Zoraymee Holdings, Inc. 
3. Paul Luis Alejandrino 
4. Dominique L. Benitez 
5. Henry T. Sy, Jr. 

 
Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers 
 
 (a) Legal Proceedings 
 

The registrant has no knowledge of any material pending legal proceedings in any court of administrative agency 
of the Government to which any of the directors and executive officers of the registrant is a party. 

 
b) Directors and Executive Officers 

 
1. Directors and Executive Officers 
 

  Directorships Citizenship Business Experience 
Name Age in Other Companies  For the Past Five Years 

Reynaldo P. Bantug        
(Director, April 19, 
2002 to present)    

62 AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. 
First Cagayan Leisure and Resort Corp. 
LR Land Developers, Inc. 
AB Leisure Global, Inc. 
BAPA Realty Development Corp. 
BAPA Holdings & Management 
(All-Director) 

Filipino Bacolod Real Estate Development  
(Vice Chairman) 
BAPA Realty Development Corp. 
BAPA Holdings & Management 
(President) 

Jose Conrado Benitez 
(Director, December 8, 
1999 to present)  

68 Benitez Investments, Inc. 
The Philippine Women’s University 
(All-Director) 

Filipino J-Afra Development Corp. 
Zoomark RPC, Inc. (Chairman) 
Mango Orchard Resource  
Development Corp. 
Manila Building Loan Asociation 
Gaialand & Property Holdings Corporation 
International Mineral Water  
Resources, Inc. 
Humanitarian Sciences Foundation 
Nirvana & Samsara Development, Inc. 
(President) 



7 

Renato G. Nuñez 
(Director, September 
30, 2005 to February 
16, 2012) 

42 First Cagayan Leisure & Resort Corp. 
AB Leisure Global, Inc. 
Arwen Gaming Consultancy, Inc. 
Javi Philfoods, Inc. 
Lia Philfoods, Inc. 
Everland Estate Development Corporation 
Buildworth Development Corporation 
(All-Director) 

Filipino AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. (VP-Administration) 
First Cagayan Leisure & Resort Corp. 
(Vice President & General Manager) 
Arwen Gaming Consultancy, Inc. 
Javi Philfoods, Inc. 
Lia Philfoods, Inc. 
Everland Estate Development Corporation 
(President/Director) 
Buildworth Development Corporation (EVP) 

Edgardo S. Lopez 
(Director, August 18, 
2006 to present) 

70 LS Finance & Management Corp. 
Heerco Philippines, Inc. 
Kings Cross Development Corp. 
(All-Director) 

Filipino LS Finance & Management Corp. (President) 
Heerco Philippines, Inc. (President) 
Kings Cross Development Corp. 
(Vice-Chairman) 

Anthony L. Almeda ** 
(Director, June 30, 
2004 to present) 

46 Landision Corp. 
Alalmeda Land, Inc. 
Filipinas Gaming Corp.  
Enet Corp. 
ALA Inc. 
Alalameda Acquisitions Inc. 
Blue Ocean Acquisitions Inc. 
BB21 Remit Inc. 
Pacifica21 Holdings Inc. 
National Grid Corp. of the Philippines 
Calaca High Power Corp. 
Terra Firma Resources Inc. 
(All - Director) 

Filipino Landision Corp. (Chairman, President) 
Filipinas Gaming Corp.  (EVP) 
ALA Inc.  
Alalmeda Land, Inc. 
Alalameda Acquisitions Inc. 
(Chairman & CEO) 
Blue Ocean Acquisitions Inc. (CEO) 
BB21 Remit Inc. 
Pacifica21 Holdings Inc. 
(Managing Director) 
National Grid Corp. of the Philippines 
Calaca High Power Corp. 
Enet Corp. 
Terra Firma Resources Inc. (Director) 

Geoffrey L. Uymatiao 
(Treasurer, Director; 
December 8, 1999 to 
present) 

63 AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. 
Longview Holdings Corporation 
First Cagayan Leisure and Resort Corp. 
LR Land Developers, Inc. 
AB Leisure Global, Inc. 
(All-Director) 

Filipino Grafika Distributors, Inc. 
(President) 
 

Willy N. Ocier 
(Director, July 31, 
2009 to present) 
 

54 Highlands Prime, Inc. 
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. 
Philippine Global Communications, Inc. 
Pacific Online Systems Corporation 
Belle Corporation 
APC Group, Inc. 
Sinophil Corporation 
Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, 
Inc. 
Vantage Equities 
(All-Director) 

Filipino Highlands Prime, Inc. (Co-Vice Chairman) 
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. (Chairman) 
Philippine Global Communications, Inc. 
(Chairman) 
Pacific Online Systems Corporation 
(Chairman and President) 
Belle Corporation Co-Vice (Chairman) 
APC Group, Inc. (Chairman) 
Sinophil Corporation (Chairman) 
Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, 
Inc. (Vice Chairman) 
Vantage Equities (Director) 
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Wilson L. Sy * 
(Director; July 29, 
2011 to present) 

59 Philequity Management, Inc. 
Asian Alliance Holdings Corporation 
Xcell Property Ventures, Inc. 
Monte Oro Resources & Energy, Inc. 
Monte Oro Grid Resources Corporation 
Vantage Equities, Inc. 
Yehey! Corporation 
Manila Stock Exchange Foundation Inc. 
(All-Director) 
Pacific Online Systems Corporation 
Tagaytay Highlands Country Club, Inc. 
Tagaytay Highlands Int’l Golf Club, Inc. 
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. 
Tagaytay Highlands Spa & Lodge 
(All-Independent Director) 

Filipino Asian Alliance Holdings Corporation  
(Vice Chairman/Director) 
Philequity Management, Inc. 
Vantage Equities, Inc. 
Basic Petroleum & Minerals 
Basic Diversified Ind. 
A. Brown Corporation 
Jollibee Foods Corporation 
Belle Corporation 
Saniwares Manufacturing 
(Director) 
Philippine Stock Exchange (Chairman) 
Manila Stock Exchange (Chairman) 
PSE Foundation, Inc. (Trustee) 

Eusebio H. Tanco * 
(Director; July 29, 
2011 to present) 

62 Asian Terminals, Inc. 
PhilPlans First, Inc. 
Philhealthcare, Inc. 
STI, Inc. 
Philippines First Insurance Co., Inc. 
Global Resource for Outsourced Workers, 
Inc. 
Mactan Electric Company 
United Coconut Chemicals, Inc. 
J & P Coats Manila Bay 
(All-Director) 

Filipino Asian Terminals, Inc. 
(Vice Chairman and President) 
PhilPlans First, Inc. 
Philhealthcare, Inc. 
STI, Inc. 
Mactan Electric Company 
 (Chairman) 
Philippines First Insurance Co., Inc. 
Global Resource for Outsourced Workers, Inc. 
(President) 
United Coconut Chemicals, Inc. (Director) 
J & P Coats Manila Bay (Director) 

Bienvenido M. 
Santiago 
(Director; November 
28, 2003 to present) 

66 AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. 
AB Leisure Global, Inc. 
The Print Gallery, Inc. 
Image Dimension, Inc. 
Corporate Image Dimensions, Inc. 
Market Light Realty & Construction, Inc. 
St. James Holding Corporation 
LR Land Developers, Inc. 
(All-Director) 

Filipino The Print Gallery, Inc. (Treasurer) 
Image Dimension, Inc.  
Corporate Image Dimensions, Inc.  
Market Light Realty & Construction, Inc. 
(Director & Corporate Secretary) 

Clarita T. Zarraga ** 
(Director, July 30, 
2010 to present) 

71 Abacus Consolidated Resources and   
Holdings, Inc. 
Lucky Circle Corporation 
Philippine Regional Investment 
Development Corporation 
Blue Stock Development Farms, Inc. 
Pride Star Development Bank 
Batangan Plaza, Inc. 
Montemayor Aggregates and Mining 
Corporation 
Alpha Asia Hotels and Resorts, Inc. 
Saturnina Estate & Dev’t Complex Corp. 
Defending Family Values Foundation, Inc. 
Batangas Social Dev’t Foundation, Inc. 
(All-Director)  
Digi Software Phils, Inc.  
(Independent Director) 

Filipino C.T. Zarraga and Associates (Managing 
Partner) 
Abacus Consolidated Resources & Holdings 
Inc.  
(Director/Chairman-Audit Committee) 
Lucky Circle Corporation 
Philippine Regional Investment Development 
Corporation 
Blue Stock Development Farms, Inc. 
Batangan Plaza, Inc. 
Montemayor Aggregates and Mining Corp. 
Alpha Asia Hotels and Resorts, Inc. 
Defending Family Values Foundation, Inc. 
Batangas Social Dev’t Foundation, Inc. 
(Director)  
Digi Software Phils, Inc.  
(Independent Director)  
Saturnina Estate & Dev’t Complex Corp. 
(Director/Treasurer) 
Pride Star Development Bank 
(Director/Credit Committee Chair) 
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Ignatius F. Yenko *** 
(Director, April 19, 
2012 to present) 

59 TKC Steel Corporation 
Sterling Bank of Asia 
Zoraymee Holdings, Inc. 
(All-Director) 

Filipino TKC Steel Corporation (Vice Chairman) 
Sterling Bank of Asia (Director) 
Cyan Management Corporation (Consultant) 
PLDT (First Vice President) 
Primetown Property Group, Inc. (Consultant) 
Piltel (Director/CFO) 

               * Newly elected directors in July 29, 2011 annual stockholders’ meeting. 
             ** Re-elected as Independent directors in July 29, 2011 annual stockholders’ meeting.   

 All of the independent directors, possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications as independent directors under SRC Rule 38 from 
the time of their election as such independent directors. 

                        *** Elected as director during BOD meeting held on April 19, 2012, to fill-up the vacancy arising from the resignation of Mr. Nuñez. 
 

 The following are the executive officers: 
 
 Mr. Reynaldo P. Bantug – President (please see discussion on directors) 

 
 Mr. Renato G. Nuñez – Vice-President (please see discussion on directors) 

 
 Mr. Alejandro P. Alonte – Vice-President  

Mr. Alonte is also the Vice-President for Operations and Marketing of AB Leisure Exponent, 
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the registrant, since 1998. He served as Branch Manager of 
Bingo Bonanza at Sta. Lucia Branch from 1996 to 1998. He was the Executive Assistant to 
the Vice-President at Dolphin Environmental Control Systems, Inc. from 1987 to 1992. He 
also worked as Executive Assistant to the Vice-President at Manila Paper Mills and at Union 
Industries, Inc. and as Partner at Rastro Bookstore. 

                     
                        Mr. Raul G. Gerodias – Corporate Secretary/Compliance Officer 

Mr. Gerodias is the Managing Partner of Gerodias Suchianco Estrella Law Firm. He is also the 
Corporate Secretary of AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. He is a director of Zoraymee Holdings, Inc., 
GSE Management Services, Inc., Fritz & Macziol Asia, Inc., AB Leisure Exponent, Inc., AB 
Food and Beverages Phils., Inc.,Parex Group, Inc., ASC Phils., Inc., and Bank of Commerce.  

 
                        Mr. Geoffrey L. Uymatiao – Treasurer (please see discussion on directors) 
 

Nominees for Directorship:  All incumbent directors, as well as independent directors, were re-
nominated. The Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors of the registrant has determined that 
the following nominees for the Board of Directors, including the independent directors, to be elected at 
this Annual Meeting, possess all the qualifications and have none of the disqualifications for directorship 
set out in the registrant’s Manual on Corporate Governance as well as the Guidelines on the Nomination 
and Election of Independent Directors set forth in SRC Rule 38 as provided in Article II Section 6 of 
Registrant’s Amended By-Laws dated November 28, 2003. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee 
is Mr. Willy N. Ocier and the members are Mr. Wilson L. Sy and Mr. Anthony L. Almeda. 

 
1.  Reynaldo P. Bantug   
2.  Anthony L. Almeda - Independent Director  
3.  Jose Conrado B. Benitez 
4.  Ignatius F. Yenko 
5.  Edgardo S. Lopez 
6.  Willy N. Ocier  
7.  Bienvenido M. Santiago 
8.  Wilson L. Sy 
9.  Eusebio H. Tanco    
10.  Geoffrey L. Uymatiao 
11.  Clarita T. Zarraga  - Independent Director 
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Mr. Anthony L. Almeda was nominated by Mr. Geoffrey L. Uymatiao, an incumbent director of the registrant, while 
Ms. Clarita T. Zarraga was nominated by Mr. Anthony L. Almeda. All of the persons recommending the 
nomination of the independent directors have no relationship to their respective nominees. Mr. Anthony L. Almeda 
is not a director in any other reporting companies.  
 
2. Significant Employees 

 
No person, who is not a director or an executive officer, is expected to make a significant contribution to the 
business of the Company. Neither is the business highly dependent on the services of key personnel. 

 
3. Family Relationships 

 
 Mr. Jose Conrado B. Benitez is a brother-in-law of Reynaldo P. Bantug. Except for the said relationship, 

there are no other family relationships known to the registrant.  
 

4. Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings 
 

The Company’s directors and executive officers were not involved in any of the following events during the 
past five years that are material to an evaluation of their ability or integrity: 
 

(a) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general 
partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; 

 
(b) Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a 

pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor 
offenses; 

 
(c) Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or 

vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily 
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, 
securities, commodities or banking activities; and 

 
(d) Being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the 

Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or other organized 
trading market or self regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or 
regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated. 

 
5.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions:  

 
Transactions between related parties are accounted for at arms’ length prices or on terms similar to those 
offered to non-related entities in an economically comparable market.  There were no transactions or 
proposed transactions during the last two (2) years to which the registrant or its subsidiaries, in which a 
director, executive officer, or stockholders owning ten percent (10%) or more of total outstanding shares and 
members of their immediate family had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest. 
 
For transactions with related parties pertaining to those consummated with its subsidiaries and other related 
parties, please refer to Notes 22 and 28 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 2011 
and 2010. 

 
6. Director’s Disagreement with Registrant Leading to Directors’ Resignation or Declining to stand for re-

election:  No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the date 
of the last annual meeting of security holders because of a disagreement with the registrant on any matter 
relating to the registrant’s operations, policies or practices. 

 
 
Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers 
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 Data as to all plan and non-plan compensation awarded to, earned by, paid to, or estimated to be paid to, directly or 
indirectly during the last two completed calendar years and the ensuing calendar year to the Company’s President and five 
other most highly compensated executive officers.  

 
Name and Principal Position Year Compensation Bonuses Other Annual 

Compensation 
 2012 Estimated Estimated Estimated 
Reynaldo P. Bantug, President     
Geoffrey L. Uymatiao, Treasurer     
Alejandro P. Alonte, Vice-President     
All above-named Officers as a group 2012 P 7,085,000 P 800,000 P 600,000 
All other officers as a group unnamed 2012 None None None 

  
Reynaldo P. Bantug,      
Bienvenido M. Santiago, (Corporate Secretary 
up to 8/18/2011) 

    

Geoffrey L. Uymatiao, Treasurer     
Renato G. Nuñez, Vice-President     
Alejandro P. Alonte, Vice-President     
All above-named Officers as a group 2011 P 6,143,191 P 800,000 P 600,000 
All other officers as a group unnamed 2011 None None None 

 
Reynaldo P. Bantug, (President from 
7/1/2010) 

    

Alfredo Abelardo B. Benitez, (President up to 
6/30/2010) 

    

Bienvenido M. Santiago, Corporate Secretary     
Geoffrey L. Uymatiao, Treasurer     
Renato G. Nuñez, Vice-President     
Alejandro P. Alonte, Vice-President     
All above-named Officers as a group 2010 P 3,318,448 P 600,000 P 440,000 
All other officers as a group unnamed 2010 None None None 

*Other annual compensation consists of director’s fees of salaried directors. 
 

(2)  Compensation of Directors 
 

 Members of the Board of Directors are elected for a term of one year.  Except for the Company’s President, Treasurer, 
Corporate Secretary and one Vice-President, all other directors receive no compensation except director’s per diem of P 
10,000.00 per meeting and per diem of P 5,000.00 in audit, compensation and nominating committees. In 2011 and 2010, a 
cash bonus of P 200,000 and P 150,000 was given to each director respectively. 

 
 Total payments to non-salaried directors amounted to P3,150,000.00 in 2011 and P1,610,000.00 in 2010. 
 

(3)  Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change in Control Arrangements 
 

There are no agreements or employment contract existing between the Company and any of its directors or executive 
officers. 

 
(4)  Outstanding Warrants and Options 

 
 The Company has no outstanding warrants and options. 
 
 
Item 7. Independent Public Accountants 
 

KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., served as Company’s external auditors for the December 31, 2011 and 2010 Financial 
Statements. Their re-appointment was approved during the Company’s annual stockholders’ meeting held on July 29, 2011. 
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The same auditing firm shall be recommended for appointment as the Company’s external auditors for the ensuing year and 
Mr. Jose P. Javier Jr. is the recommended partner-in-charge. 
 
Mr. Jose P. Javier Jr. was the partner in charge of the Company’s 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 audit while Mr. Wilfredo Z. 
Palad was the partner in charge during 2007 and 2006 audit. The handling audit partner is rotated every five (5) years in 
compliance with SRC Rule 68, Paragraph 3(b)(iv). 
 
There was no event in the past where KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co. had any disagreement with the Company with 
regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices or financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or 
procedure. 
  
Representatives of the Independent Public Accountant (KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPA’s) are expected to be 
present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and 
are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions. 
 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Ms. Clarita T. Zarraga and the members are Mr. Reynaldo P. Bantug and Mr. 
Geoffrey L. Uymatiao. 
 
 

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES 
 
Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters 
  

On March 21, 2011, the Registrant’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of One Hundred Fifty Million shares 
from the unissued portion of its capital stock through private placement. By virtue of Subscription Agreements all dated 
March 24, 2011, the following companies subscribed to a total of 150,000,000 shares at the stipulated subscription price of 
P 7.50 per share:  
 

Name of Subscriber/Investor Number of Shares Subscription Amount (P) 
Grandshares Inc. (Grandshares) 100,000,000 750,000,000.00 
Pacific Online Systems Corporation (Pacific Online) 25,000,000 187,500,000.00 
Vantage Equities, Inc. (Vantage Equities) 25,000,000 187,500,000.00 

 
Twenty-Five percent (25%) of the subscription amount was paid upon the execution of the Subscription Agreements, while 
the remaining Seventy-Five percent (75%) was paid on May 15, 2011, as follows: 
 

Name of 
Subscriber/Investor 

Subscription 
Amount (P) 

Paid Upon Execution of 
the Subscription 
Agreements (P) 

Paid on May 15, 2011 (P) 

Grandshares  750,000,000 187,500,000 562,500,000 
Pacific Online  187,500,000 46,875,000 140,625,000 
Vantage Equities 187,500,000 46,875,000 140,625,000 

  
The approval of the shareholders on these private placement transactions was obtained during the annual stockholders’ 
meeting held on July 29, 2011. 
 
Upon full payment of the total subscription amount and after filing of the notice of exempt transaction with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the filing of additional listing of shares with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE), share 
certificates shall be issued to the respective subscribers. 
 
On November 23, 2011, PSE approved the application to list additional 150,000,000 million shares with a par value of P1.00 
per share to cover the said private placement transactions. Upon execution of the Escrow Agreement on April 3, 2012 to 
implement the required lock-up of the private placement shares, the PSE in its Memorandum dated May 3, 2012, set the 
listing of the additional 150,000,000 shares on May 7, 2012. 
 

 
D. OTHER MATTERS 
 
Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports 
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The minutes of the previous Annual Stockholders’ Meeting dated July 29, 2011 shall be submitted to the stockholders for 
approval.  Also to be submitted for approval/ratification is the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for fiscal 
year 2011 and the actions taken by the Board of Directors and Officers since the last annual meeting of the stockholders as 
follows: 

 
1. Approval of list of nominees for election to the Board of Directors including the independent directors as 

submitted by the Nomination Committee. 
2. Approval of audit reports and financial statements as presented by the Audit Committee. 
 

 
Item 18. Other Proposed Actions 
 

There are no other proposed actions to be taken on matters other than those provided in the preceding items. 
 
Item 19. Voting Procedures 

 
  (a) Vote required for Approval or Election 
 

With respect to the election of directors, candidates who receive the highest number of affirmative votes will be declared 
elected. 

 
With respect to: (i) the approval of the reports stated in Item 15 above; (ii) approval of appointment of KPMG Manabat 
Sanagustin & Co., as external auditor of the Corporation; and (iii) all other matters subject to vote, except in cases when the 
law provides otherwise, the affirmative vote of majority of the outstanding capital stock entitled to vote is required to approve 
such matters.  

 
(b) Method by which votes will be counted 

 
Except as otherwise provided by law, each stockholder of record shall be entitled at every meeting of stockholders to one 
vote for each share of stock standing in his name on the stock books of the registrant, which vote may be given personally 
or by attorney authorized in writing.  The instrument authorizing as attorney or proxy to act shall be exhibited to the 
Secretary if he shall so request.  In the election of directors, each stockholder entitled to vote may cumulate and distribute 
his votes in accordance with the provisions of the Corporation Code. 

 
Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present in person or proxy at any meeting, and entitled to vote 
thereat, the vote on any question need not be by ballot.  On a vote by ballot, each ballot shall be signed by the stockholder 
voting, in his name or by his proxy if there be such proxy, and shall state the number of shares voted by him.  In any and all 
matters requiring the vote of the stockholders, it is the Company’s Corporate Secretary who shall be authorized to count the 
votes to be cast. 
 
The Company’s 18,330,500 LR shares acquired by AB Leisure Exponent, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of LRWC will not 
be voted on as these are deemed treasury shares. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SIGNATURE 

 
 After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this report is 
true, complete and correct.  This report is signed in the City of Pasig on June 6, 2012. 
 
 

LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION 
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Issuer 
  By:    
                            
   

              
RAUL G. GERODIAS 
Corporate Secretary 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 

PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 

Business 
 
 Business Development 

 
 Primary Purpose 

 
Leisure and Resorts World Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “Company/LRWC” or the “Registrant”) was incorporated 
on October 10, 1957.  As part of the corporate restructuring of the Company in 1996, the Company’s primary purpose was 
amended in 1999 to engage in realty development focusing on leisure business.  However, for several years, it had minimal 
operations and functioned as a holding company. 

 
Share Swap 
 
In October 1999, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the Share Exchange Agreements (Agreements) with the 
shareholders of AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. (ABLE), operator of a number of bingo parlors, for the acquisition of the entire 
outstanding capital stock of ABLE in exchange for 750 million new shares of the Company valued at P750 million.  By virtue 
of the Agreements, ABLE became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.  
 
On September 19, 2000, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the Company’s increase in authorized 
capital stock to P2.5 billion.  Out of the aforementioned increase which consists of a total 2.5 billion common shares at P 1 
par value, a total of 750 million common shares with aggregate par value of P750 million have been subscribed and fully 
paid for through the assignment in favor of the Company of 500,000 common shares of ABLE representing the entire 
outstanding capital stock thereof by ABLE shareholders.  This subscription and payment in ABLE shares was an 
implementation of the duly executed Agreements.  These shares were principally held in escrow with a local commercial 
bank. In 2007 and 2008, SEC approved the release of shares totaling 131,237,048 out of the shares held in escrow.  The 
remaining shares totaling 5,942,597 were finally approved for release on October 10, 2011. 
 

               AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. 
 
On March 31, 1995, ABLE was registered with the SEC. The primary purpose of ABLE and its subsidiaries is to provide 
amusement and recreation to the public in such forms as, but not limited to, traditional, electronic, pulltabs and rapid bingo 
games. Doing business as Bingo Bonanza Corporation, ABLE has established itself as the pioneer in professional bingo 
gaming in the Philippines. ABLE has twenty-five (25) wholly/majority owned subsidiaries.  The Group operates 60 bingo 
parlors nationwide, six (6) of which are owned by ABLE.  There are two (2) dormant subsidiaries/bingo parlors and two (2) 
bingo parlors operated by minority owned affiliates. Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) granted 
ABLE and subsidiaries/affiliates the authority to operate bingo games pursuant to PD 1869. 

  
 First Cagayan Leisure & Resort Corporation (FCLRC) 

 
On April 26, 2000, FCLRC was incorporated. The Company acquired 35% of the outstanding capital stock of FCLRC by 
purchasing 43,750 shares with a Par value of P100 last September 20, 2005. FCLRC has an existing License Agreement 
with the Cagayan Economic Zone Authority (CEZA), to develop, operate and conduct internet and gaming enterprises and 
facilities in the Cagayan Special Economic Zone Free Port (CSEZFP). Pursuant to the License Agreement, FCLRC was 
issued the “CEZA Master Licensor Certificate” certifying that FCLRC is duly authorized to regulate and monitor on behalf of 
CEZA all activities pertaining to the licensing and operation of interactive games. On March 3, 2006, the Board of Directors 
(BOD) approved the additional investment of 40,000 shares in FCLRC for an aggregate amount of P32.0 million. This 
additional subscription to FCLRC’s shares brought the registrant’s total investment to 83,750 shares representing 50.75% of 
the issued and outstanding capital stock. On April 3, 2006, the BOD approved the acquisition of 31,250 shares, representing 
25% of the issued shares (prior to issuance of the additional subscription) of FCLRC, from one of its shareholders, Joanna 
Heights, Inc. for an aggregate amount of P25.0 million on the same terms as the earlier additional subscription. The 
acquisition was completed upon execution of the Deed of Assignment of Rights on September 27, 2006. With this 
acquisition, the registrant now holds 115,000 shares representing 69.68% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of 
FCLRC. 
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 LR Land Developers, Inc. (LRLDI) 
 

On December 11, 2007, the SEC approved the incorporation of a wholly owned subsidiary, Northern Philippines Land and 
Property Development Inc. (NPLPDI), whose primary purpose is to engage in the business of purchasing, leasing, owning, 
using, improving, developing, subdividing, selling, mortgaging exchanging, leasing and holding for investment or otherwise, 
real estates of all kinds and build or cause to be built on any such land owned, held or occupied for management or 
disposition buildings, houses, or other structures with their appurtenances. On March 3, 2008, SEC approved the 
amendment to the Articles of Incorporation changing its name to LRLDI. 

  
 Binondo Leisure Resources, Inc. (BLRI) 

 
On February 11, 2003 BLRI was incorporated and subsequently amended last July 2, 2003. On July 25, 2003, the Company 
signed a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with BLRI.  In accordance with the MOA, the Company acquired a 30% 
interest in BLRI through the assignment of shares. The MOA also indicated that the Company would subscribe to 200,000 
preferred shares of BLRI with a Par value of P100.00 (after SEC approval on BLRI’s application of increase in capital stock).  
The preferred shares are cumulative and shall be entitled to dividends at the rate of 14% per annum. On May 13, 2004, the 
SEC approved the BLRI’s application for the increase in its capital stock. The Company will also acquire additional shares of 
BLRI representing 21% amounting to P2.1 million from BLRI’s existing shareholders subject to completion of certain 
requirements. 

  
 AB Leisure Global, Inc. (ABLGI) 

 
On October 20, 2009, SEC approved the incorporation of another wholly owned subsidiary, AB Leisure Global Inc. (ABLGI), 
whose primary purpose is to purchase, acquire, own, use, improve, construct, develop, maintain, subdivide, sell, dispose of, 
exchange, lease and hold for investment, or otherwise deal with real estate and personal property of all kinds, including the 
management and operation of the activities conducted therein pertaining to general amusement and recreation enterprises, 
such as but not limited to resorts, golf courses, clubhouses and sports facilities, hotels and gaming facilities, with all the 
apparatus, equipment and other appurtenances as may be related thereto or in connection therewith. The authorized capital 
stock of ABLGI is Five Million (P 5,000,000.00), divided into Fifty Thousand shares (50,000) with par value of One Hundred 
Pesos (P 100.00), of which, One Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand (P1,250,000.00) has been actually subscribed and 
Three Hundred Twelve Thousand Five Hundred (P 312,500.00) of the subscribed shares has been paid up. On May 3, 
2011, the Company’s BOD approved the increase in the authorized capital stock from Five Million Pesos (P5,000,000) to 
Four Hundred Million Pesos (P400,000,000) divided into Four Million Shares (4,000,000) with par value of One Hundred 
Pesos (P100).  Relative to this, deposits were made by LRWC for future stock subscriptions totaling to Ninety Eight Million 
Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Pesos (P98,750,000.00) as of December 31, 2011.  
 
As of this date, however, ABLGI has not yet filed its application for the increase in its authorized capital stock with the SEC. 
 
Blue Chip Gaming and Leisure Corporation (BCGLC) 
 
On October 9, 2009, BCGLC was registered with SEC. Its primary purpose is to provide investment, management, counsel 
and to act as agent or representative for business enterprises engaged in gaming, recreation and leisure activities. On 
October 20, 2009, BCGLC as lessor and as the authorized representative of Munich Management Limited – a foreign 
corporation duly organized and registered in British Virgin Islands entered into a contract of lease with PAGCOR as lessee 
for the use of slot machines and gaming facilities. On April 27, 2011, LRWC purchased 26,250 shares of BCGLC 
representing 70% of BCGLC’s outstanding capital stock. The purchase was ratified by LRWC’s BOD on May 24, 2011.  
 
Bingo Bonanza (HK) Limited (BBL) 
 
On March 15, 2010, LRWC incorporated BBL, as its 60%-owned subsidiary.  Its primary purpose is to engage in the 
business of gaming, recreation, leisure and lease of property.  BBL was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance of 
Hongkong. BBL has not started its operations as of December 31, 2011. 
 
The 2010 consolidated financial statements did not include the balances of BBL as these were immaterial to the Group.  In 
2011, however, BBL’s balances are already included in LRWC’s consolidated financial statements. 

 
  
 LRWC Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws  
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The stockholders of LRWC approved various amendments to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.  The more relevant 
amendments relating to the current operations are as follows: 

 
1) On September 30, 2005, the extension of   the registrant’s corporate existence until the year 2055.  SEC 

approved this amendment on November 6, 2006; and 
 
2) On November 28, 2003, change in the date of the annual meeting of stockholders from the third Tuesday of April 

to the last week of June.  On September 30, 2005, it was again amended from the last week of June of each year 
to the last week of July. This was further amended on August 18, 2006 from the last week of July of each year to 
the last Friday of July. SEC approved this amendment on May 25, 2007. 

 
Cash Dividends  
 
On July 31, 2009, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend equivalent to P0.03 per share payable to all common 
stockholders of record as of August 28, 2009 and another cash dividend of P 0.03 per share payable to all common 
stockholders of record as of November 27, 2009. In addition, the Board also approved the distribution of cash bonus to all of 
its directors in the amount of One Hundred Thousand (P 100,000.00) each. On the same date, stockholders present in 
person or by proxy in the annual meeting, representing 586,717,106 shares or 75.94% of the outstanding capital stock of 
the registrant, approved the declaration of a 10% stock dividend or 77,262,310 shares which was issued out of the 
authorized and unissued capital stock of the Corporation to all stockholders of record as of August 28, 2009. 
 
On July 30, 2010, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend equivalent to P 0.03 per share payable to all common 
stockholders of record as of August 27, 2010, another cash dividend of P 0.03 per share payable to all common 
stockholders of record as of November 26, 2010 and another cash dividend of P 0.02 per share payable to all common 
stockholders of record as of January 28, 2011.  In addition, the Board also approved the distribution of cash bonus to all of 
its directors in the amount of One Hundred Fifty Thousand (P 150,000.00) each. 
 
On July 29, 2011, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend equivalent to P 0.030 per share payable to all 
common stockholders of record as of September 28, 2011, another cash dividend of P 0.025 per share payable to all 
common stockholders of record as of January 30, 2012 and another cash dividend of P 0.020 per share payable to all 
common stockholders of record as of February 29, 2012.  In addition, the Board also approved the distribution of cash 
bonus to all of its directors in the amount of Two Hundred Thousand (P 200,000.00) each. 
 
Others 

 
On February 19, 2008, the BOD of ABLE approved the acquisition of LRWC shares of up to 15,000,000 shares as a 
temporary investment in marketable securities in consideration that ABLE has excess funds for investments. Thereafter, 
ABLE started to acquire LRWC shares at the prevailing market price. As of December 31, 2011, ABLE has a total of 
18,330,500 LRWC shares (at a market value of P166,624,245) held as temporary investments in marketable securities. 

 
On March 17, 2009, the BOD approved a resolution recalling the resolution to issue 37,000,000 shares out of the unissued 
portion of its authorized capital stock in favor of Asianlogic Limited at the subscription price of P3.10 per share or an 
aggregate amount of One Hundred Fourteen Million Seven Hundred Thousand Pesos (P114,700,000), in accommodation of 
Asianlogic’s preference to defer indefinitely the subscription to said shares in view of the worldwide adverse market 
conditions. The Corporation and Asianlogic have agreed to revisit this planned subscription to such time when the market 
conditions are more stable. 
 
On March 11, 2011, the BOD authorized the issuance, through private placement, of P150 million shares from its unissued 
capital stock at a price of P7.50 per share. The newly issued shares were subscribed by third parties. Twenty-Five percent 
(25%) of the subscription amount was paid upon the execution of the Subscription Agreements on March 24, 2011, while 
the remaining Seventy-Five percent (75%) was settled on May 15, 2011.  The issuance of these shares was filed with SEC 
on May 2011 and was approved and ratified by the Stockholders in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on July 29, 2011. 
As a result of this issuance, the total issued and outstanding stocks of the registrant as of December 31, 2011 increased to 
999,877,094 shares. 
 
On May 24, 2011, the BOD approved a resolution for the adoption of a Management Incentive Stock Option Plan to be 
administered and implemented by a Committee composed of five members, two of whom must be independent directors, 
and allocating five percent (5%) of the authorized capital stock for the stock option plan which will be made available to the 
members of the Board of Directors, except independent directors, executive officers occupying the positions of President, 
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Vice-President and Assistant Vice-President of the Corporation and its subsidiaries.  The purchase price for the shares 
under the stock option plan shall be the 45 trading day moving average of the market price or such lower price as may be 
allowed by the Securities Regulation Code and the Philippine Stock Exchange minus any discount that may be approved by 
the Committee which shall not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the purchase price. 
 
Products, Games and Distribution Methods 

 
ABLE 

 
ABLE (popularly known as Bingo Bonanza Corporation), the pioneer in professional bingo gaming in the Philippines, is a 
100% subsidiary of the Company. ABLE bingo parlors have become community and entertainment centers, a source of 
revenue for the government, and a sponsor for fund-raising activities relating to social and educational programs. 

 
The traditional bingo game remains the principal product line. ABLE is trying to lead the way, not only through profitable 
business partnerships, but also through sound business strategy that combines technological innovation and continuous 
variations of the traditional bingo game in terms of number combinations, payouts and game mechanics.  Such variations 
include among others Quick Shot, Circle 8, Instant Bingo Bonanza, Player’s Choice, and X Game. In addition to these 
variations, ABLE also introduced the Video Link Bingo, which enables bingo players in one parlor to play simultaneously 
same game with players in other parlors for bigger payouts.  The majority of the Metro Manila bingo parlors have been 
linked for the metro-wide bingo game. Likewise, the Visayas’ bingo parlors have been linked to form their own cluster. 

 
ABLE also launched the E-bingo games (EBG) in 2002 with 20 machines. As of December 31, 2011, around 2,162 
machines were installed in 44 affiliated bingo parlors.   

 
In August 2005, ABLE introduced Rapid Bingo with 14 terminals in 14 bingo parlors. By end of 2011, a total of 86 Rapid 
Bingo terminals were installed in 66 bingo parlors, 20 of which are located in non-affiliated bingo parlors and casinos. ABLE 
also introduced Pull Tabs in the latter part of 2005 and continues to market said product to all its operational bingo parlors 
and other non-affiliated establishments.  

 
ABLE and its subsidiaries/affiliates operate a total of 60 bingo parlors, 6 of which are owned by ABLE, 52 sites are owned 
through subsidiaries and two (2) are minority owned affiliates. There are 2 dormant subsidiaries/bingo parlors for relocation 
as of December 31, 2011. Most of these bingo parlors are located in major shopping malls in Metro Manila and in key 
provincial cities. Enumerated below is a list of bingo branches, subsidiaries/affiliates, its locations, date of organization and 
ABLE’s equity interest. 
 

Company-Owned Bingo Parlors:   Location 
    
   1. SM Mega Mall, EDSA, Mandaluyong City  
   2. Sta. Lucia East Mall, Cainta, Rizal 
   3. SM City, North EDSA, EDSA, Quezon City 
   4. New Farmers Plaza, EDSA, Quezon City 
   5. Makati Cinema Square, Pasong Tamo, Makati 

City 
   6. SM Southmall, Almanza, Las Pinas City 
    
Bingo Parlors Owned Through 
Subsidiaries/Equity 

Date of 
Organization 

 Location 

    
Alabang Numbers & Gaming Corp., 100% 11/18/97  1. Festival Supermall, Alabang, Muntinlupa City 
All Point Leisure Corporation, 100%  07/16/97  2. SM Centerpoint, Quezon City 
   3. Harrison Plaza, Manila 
Big Time Gaming Corporation, 100% 03/27/06  4. Sunshine Blvd. Plaza, Quezon Ave. Corner Sct 

Santiago & Panay Ave., Quezon City 
   5. 2/F Intrepid Plaza Bldg., E. Rodriguez Ave. Bgry 

Bagumbayan, Quezon City 
   6. G/F QY Plaza, 233 Tomas Morato Ave., South 

Triangle 4, Quezon City 
Bingo Dinero Corporation, 95% 08/19/98  7. SM City, North Reclamation Area, Cebu City 
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Bingo Extravaganza, Inc., 100% 01/11/99  8. SM Sucat, Sucat Road, Paranaque City  
   9. SM City Bicutan, Don Bosco, Paranaque City 
  10. Tonie’s Mart, Puerto Princesa, Palawan 
  11. BLC Bldg, Rizal Ave., Puerto Prinsesa, Palawan 
Bingo Gallery, Inc., 100% 10/16/98 12. Liana’s Mutya ng Pasig Mall, Caruncho, Pasig 

City  
  13. SM City Mastersons Ave., Canitoan, Cagayan de 

Oro City  
  14. Armal Centre Bldg., Bgry. Malinao, Pasig City 
  15. Robinsons Metro East, Santolan, Pasig City 
Bingo Palace Corporation, 100% 08/19/98 16. Robinson’s Place, Ermita, Manila 
  17. SM Mall of Asia, Pasay City 
  18. New Public Market, Urdaneta City, Pangasinan 

(closed 12/21/11) 
Bingo Zone, Inc., 95% 05/13/99 19. Dormant 
Cebu Entertainment Gallery, Inc., 100% 09/07/98 20. Elizabeth Mall, Leon Kilat St., Cebu City 
Fiesta Gaming & Entertainment Corp, 100% 11/07/97 21. Dormant 
First Leisure and Game Co., Inc., 100% 12/09/97 22. Robinson’s Place, Mandalagan, Bacolod City 
  23. G/F Lopue’s Mandalagan Bldg, Lacson St, 

Mandalagan, Bacolod City 
Galleria Bingo Corporation, 100% 10/27/98 24. Robinson’s Galleria, EDSA, Quezon City 
G-One Gaming and Technology, Inc., 100% 04/06/98 25. SM City Bacoor, Tirona Highway, Cavite 
Highland Gaming Corporation, 100% 06/06/00 26. Baguio Centermall, Baguio City 
  27. SM City Baguio, Luneta Hill, Baguio City 
Iloilo Bingo Corporation, 100% 12/01/99 28. SM City Iloilo, Manduriao, Iloilo City 
Isarog Gaming Corporation, 90% 04/24/98 29. SM City Naga, CBD2, Bgry Trianggulo, Naga City 
  30. B3, Unit 1,2,3,544, 55 & 56 ALDP Mall, Roxas 

Ave Triangulo, Naga City 
Manila Bingo Corporation, 95% 09/24/97 31. SM City Fairview, Regalado, Fairview, Q.C. 
Metro Gaming Entertainment Gallery, Inc., 100% 06/24/98 32. M-Star, CV Star Ave., Pamplona, Las Pinas City 
  33. SM Supercenter, Molino Rd., Bacoor, Cavite 
  34. 5/F 168 Divisoria Mall, Soler St. Binondo, Manila 
  35. Unit GF, ANS-08 Pasay City Mall Ave cor Arnaiz,  

Pasay City 
One Bingo Place, Inc., 80% 05/03/00 36. SM City Manila, Arroceros St., Manila 
Rizal Gaming Corporation, 100% 11/12/98 37. Robinson’s Place, Cainta, Rizal 
  38. Robinson’s Pioneer, Edsa, Mandaluyong City 
  39. UGF 101, 102 SM City Masinag, Brgy Mayamot, 

Antipolo City 
SG Amusement and Recreation Corp., 100% 08/24/05 40. Greenhills Shopping Center, San Juan City 
  41. Villa Bldg. Jupiter St., Makati City  
  42. Wilson Square, P.Guevarra, San Juan City 
  43. Unit # M5 Hobbies of Asia, #8 Pres. Diosdado 

Macapagal Blvd, Pasay Ctiy 
South Bingo Corporation, 100% 12/10/97 44. SM City Davao, Quimpo Blvd., Davao City 
South Entertainment Gallery, Inc., 100% 12/13/00 45. SM City, San Fernando City, Pampanga 
  46. SM City Lucena, Dalahican, Dupay, Lucena City 
  47. SM Supercenter, Muntinlupa City 
  48. Pacific Mall, Tagarao St., Lucena City 
  49. SM City Tarlac, San Roque, Tarlac City 
Summit Bingo, Inc., 60% 01/19/99 50. Savers’ Mall, Balibago, Angeles City, Pampanga 
Topmost Gaming, Corp. 100% 01/13/98 51. 5th Flr., Nova Plaza Mall, Quirino Highway, 

Novaliches, Quezon City 
  52. 3/F Star J Plaza, F. Sevilla Blvd, Brgy. Tañong, 

Malabon City 
 
Bingo Parlor Owned Through An 

Date of 
Organization 

  
Location 
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Affiliate/Equity: 
Insular Gaming Corporation, 40% 12/13/00 1. G/F, Berds Bldg., Iligan City 
Vinta Gaming Corporation, 50% 04/28/03 2. Gaisano Mall, Koronadal, South Cotabato 

(temporary closed) 
 

ABLGI    
       

On January 14, 2011, ABLGI entered into an agreement to act as an operator and manager of the casino with Premium 
Leisure and Amusement, Inc. (PLAI), a subsidiary of Belle Corporation. PLAI is a member of consortium composed of SM 
Investments Corporation, SM Land, Inc., SM Hotels Corporation, SM Development Corporation and SM Commercial 
Properties.  On the same date, an Operating Agreement was signed by PLAI and ABLGI, wherein as operator and manager 
of the casino, ABLGI shall exercise supervision, direction and responsibility for the operation of the casino in behalf of PLAI 
pursuant to the Provisional License issued by PAGCOR. 
 
On March 14, 2011, ABLGI entered into an agreement (in conjunction with the Operating Agreement) with Asia Pacific 
Gaming Consultancy Ltd., a corporation established in Macau SAR, China for professional services in the management of 
the casino. 

 
LRLDI  
 

In 2010, LRLDI entered into an agreement   with   Cagayan   Premium   Ventures      Development Corporation (CPVDC) 
and Cagayan Land Property Development Corporation (CLPDC), both third parties and corporations incorporated in the 
Philippines, to finance the construction of the airport at Lal-lo, Cagayan.  The terms and conditions of the agreement include 
the following:  (1) LRLDI agrees to invest funds or make advances into the Lal-lo Airport Project of CPVDC through a 
convertible loan in favor of CLPDC of a maximum of P 700 million. CPVDC shall only use the advances to finance its capital 
expenditures and working capital requirements related to the construction development of the airport;  (2) LRLDI shall have 
the right to convert, in whole or in part, the outstanding amount of the advances at the time of  the  conversion,  into new,  
unissued common  shares of CLPDC subject to mutually agreed conversion price per conversion share; (3) CLPDC 
acknowledges and agrees that  the  advances will  be directly received by CPVDC and  (4) CLPDC  shall execute a 
separate agreement with LRLDI which provides for the specific procedures and details of borrowing, execution of the 
conversion and or repayment.  
 
The construction of the airport is in line with the Master Development Plan with CEZA within the CSEZFP. LRLDI and 
FCLRC have significant operations within the CSEZFP, which will benefit from the construction of the airport. The 
construction of the airport is ongoing as of April 19, 2012. 
 
FCLRC 
 
On February 3, 2001, FCLRC and CEZA entered into a License Agreement authorizing FCLRC to set up a network 
operation/hub with its internet server including web sites, gaming software, application programs, administrative software, 
hardware, internet, as well as telecommunication connections, collection and payment system and toll-free telephone 
operations, all in connection with the development, operation and conduct of internet and gaming enterprises and facilities in 
CSEZFP.  In line this mandate, FCLRC was also authorized and licensed to conduct interactive games as defined in the 
License Agreement. 

Subsequent to the signing of the License Agreement, FCLRC and CEZA signed a Supplemental Agreement which provides 
authority for FCLRC in the following capacity: (1) Appointment as Master Licensor for internet gaming activities and shall be 
responsible for monitoring all activities pertaining to the licensing and operation of interactive gamines in CSEZFP; (2) Assist 
CEZA in its functions as regulator for interactive gaming activities on behalf of CEZA in accordance with CSEZFP 
Interactive Gaming Rules and Regulations; (3) The authorization as Master Licensor shall be exclusive for twenty-five (25) 
years starting from 2006 until 2031; (4) Authorized to collect a sub-license fee to two (2) percent  of  the gross  winnings 
from the internet casino,  in accordance with  an agreed  formula.  Also, the Company is authorized to collect from sub-
licenses, an annual fixed amount equivalent to $48,000 for the first year of operations and $60,000 thereafter, from 
sportsbook operators and (5) The Company must pay CEZA, on a monthly basis to commence upon the start of actual 
operations , an amount equivalent to one (1) percent of the monthly gross winnings payable not later than the seventh (7th) 
day of the subsequent month.  Starting on the sixth (6th) year after the start of the Company’s operation, it shall pay a 
minimum guaranteed amount of $250,000 each month.    
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FCLRC proposed a Master Development Plan in keeping its authority under the License Agreement.  The Master 
Development Plan will accordingly create a self-sustaining industrial zone and mixed-use new township in the CSEZFP with 
tourism and leisure as the lead sector to be developed.  
The Master Development Plan as envisaged by FCLRC shall comprise of the three (3) phases with time frame of 
completion as follows:  
 
Phase I: which shall be completed one (1) year after authorization of the CEZA BOD, includes telecommunication 
connectivity via microwave radio, upgrading of the existing internet data center, conversion of the CEZA Complex into a 
gaming facility, upgrading of the San Vicente naval Airport and construction of a new CEZA  Administration Office; 
 
Phase II: which shall be completed three (3) years from completion of Phase I, shall include the telecommunication 
connectivity via fiver optic, redundant telecommunication connectivity and construction of a leisure and resort complex; 
 
Phase III: which shall be completed three (3) years from completion of Phase II, shall include the implementation of the 
Comprehensive Feasibility Study that will provide a complete telecommunication infrastructure for the whole of the CSEZFP 
and development of a beach front property into a leisure and gaming facility.  
 
As of December 31, 2011, there were 60 licensed locators, 52 of which are operational. Last year, FCLRC had 45 licensed 
locators, of which 36 were operational then. 

 
 First Cagayan Converge Data Center, Inc. (FCCDC) 
 

FCLRC and IP Converge Data Center Corporation (a wholly-owned subsidiary of listed firm IPVG Corp.) formed a joint 
venture corporation with the name First Cagayan Converge Data Center, Inc which was incorporated on November 14, 
2007.  FCLRC owns 60% of the outstanding capital stock of FCCDC. This joint venture corporation was formed to engage in 
the business of information technology such as IP communication, co-location, bandwidth, disaster recovery services, 
software development, internet merchant payment processing and payment solution, premium dial up access, voice over 
internet protocol (VOIP), IP-wide arera network services and other value added services.  Presently, FCCDC provides a 
range of services to Internet Gaming Operators at the CSEZFP for a fee. These revenue streams include but are not limited 
to the following: 
 
• Connectivity using wide bandwidth capabilities  
• Physical housing of the server to host the Internet site, in a high security site  
• High quality monitoring and maintenance services for the Internet infrastructure  
• Hosting services which include connection of servers and data networking equipment to the same monitoring and 

management system  
• A range of call center services  
• A range of value added services for ongoing operation of the Internet Site and management of the Internet Casino Site  
• Office space  
• Administration services which includes facilities management, server management and network monitoring  
• Payment and receipt of gaming funds services  
• Telecommunication services  
• Physical security and monitored access  
• Off-site storage of back up materials in secure premises  
• Second level help desk service that includes provision of a single answering point for operational, performance, 

reporting and commercial issues 
• Value added services, such as website monitoring, traffic analysis. Marketing analysis, telemarketing, and customer 

relationship management among others. 
 

FCCDC commenced its commercial operations on January 1, 2008; thus FCLRC’s statement of income includes its 60% 
equity in net earnings from FCCDC. 
 
In 2009, FCLRC and FCCDCI agreed to apply P 3.75 million of FCLRC’s cash dividend against the subscription payable to 
FCCDCI. 
 
IPVG Corp. acquired IP Converge Data Center Corporation’s ownership interest in FCCDCI and entered into a Deed of 
Assignment of Subscription Rights with IP E-Games Ventures, Inc. (IP E-Games), whereby IPVG Corp. assigned 9,999,998 
shares of stock in FCCDCI with a par and issue value of P1.  The assignment was made effective January 1, 2009.  
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However, on April 13, 2011, the Board of Directors of both IP E-Games and IPCDCC jointly approved the sale of IP E-
Games 40% equity stake in FCCDCI to IPCDCC for a total consideration of P120 million. 
 
Competition 
 
ABLE 

 
ABLE manages to stay on top of competition with its extensive network of bingo parlors, and by continuing the development 
of new parlors and game products.  Consolidated sales grew by P22.8 million or 0.63% from P3,606.9 million in 2010 to 
P3,629.7 million in 2011. 

 
Ever mindful of the growing major competitors such as Bingo Mania, Bigshot Bingo, Bingo Amusement Corporation, as well 
as small players and new entrants, ABLE sustains its market presence by aggressively offering huge jackpot payouts and 
launching new products to attract more players. Based on informal surveys, ABLE estimates its market share of the 
traditional bingo to be 33% to 40% in the last 3 years. 
 
FCLRC 

 
Being the master licensor of Internet gaming in Southeast Asia, FCLRC is in the forefront in leading the Cagayan Free Port 
as the premier i-Gaming licensing jurisdiction. FCLRC virtually has no competition in the industry in the Southeast Asia 
region. However there are around 80 gaming jurisdictions around the globe. 
 
Major Supplier 
 
ABLE 
 
Currently, ABLE sources its bingo cards and supplies mainly from BK Systems Philippines, exclusive distributor of Bingo 
King, USA, one of the world’s largest manufacturers and suppliers of bingo cards and bingo related products.  
 
In 2002, ABLE entered into a Lease and Technical Assistance Agreement with FBM Gaming Arizona, Inc., to provide the 
necessary equipment, systems, facilities and technical support for the conduct and operation of Electronic Bingo Games. 
 
In 2007, ABLE entered into a Lease and Services Agreement with Dingo Systems, Inc. to supply and lease gaming 
equipment and systems for the operation of the “Dingo Thunder Series System and Games”. 

 
In 2005, ABLE entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Intralot S.A. Integrated Lottery Systems and Services to 
supply state-of-the-art hardware/software machines, equipment and accessories for the operation and conduct of 
computerized “on-line” bingo system known as the Rapid Bingo. 
 
In 2011, ABLE and Intralot S.A. Integrated Lottery Systems and Services amended its Equipment Lease and Services 
Agreement which includes: (1) Assignment of parent company Intralot S.A. Integrated Lottery Systems and Services to 
Intralot, Inc. and (2) Extension of Equipment lease and Services Agreement from its original scheduled expiration in August 
2010 to September 2015. 
 
FCLRC 
 
Major suppliers of FCLRC for IT and telecom equipment and supplies are B87 Technologies, Inc., CAMJ Construction, Inc. 
and ERS Telecoms among others. 
 
Dependence if any to Major Customers 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries are not dependent upon a single customer or a few customers, the loss of any or more of 
which would not have a material adverse effect on the company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole. 
 
Patents, trademarks & licenses 
 
ABLE 

 
PAGCOR granted ABLE and its subsidiaries/affiliates (the Group), the authority to operate bingo halls pursuant to 
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Presidential Decree No. 1869 (P.D. 1869). In consideration for the Grants, the Group shall pay PAGCOR 20% of its gross 
cards sales, representing franchise fees and taxes, which shall be remitted to PAGCOR on weekly basis. Pursuant to P.D. 
1869, the BIR Franchise Tax shall be in lieu of all kinds of taxes, levies, fees or assessments of any kind, nature or 
description, levied, established or collected by any municipal, provincial or national government authority.  The Group 
deposited cash and performance bonds with PAGCOR to ensure due observance of and faithful compliance with the terms 
and conditions of the Grants.   

  
In 2008, PAGCOR approved and issued to its bingo grantees the Bingo Regulatory Order No. 2008-01 entitled “Modified 
Computation of the Five Percent (5%) Franchise Tax”. The regulation modified the basis for the computation of the BIR 
Franchise Tax being remitted to PAGCOR by the bingo grantees for their Traditional Bingo operations as follows:  fifteen 
percent (15%) of its gross receipts from bingo card sales (representing PAGCOR share), and five percent (5%) of its gross 
revenue (i.e. gross sales less payouts), representing BIR franchise tax retroactive to January 1, 2008.  

 
On June 13, 2000, PAGCOR granted ABLE the authority to be the primary and exclusive distributor of the Instant Charity 
Bingo Game II (ICBG2) cards to complement its existing bingo game operations pursuant to Presidential Decree No. 1869. 
In consideration for the Grant, ABLE shall pay PAGCOR, upon withdrawal of Instant Charity Bingo Game II cards, the 
regulatory fee of 12.5% of the gross sales value of the cards sold/purchased. However, because of the poor sales 
performance, ABLE discontinued the distribution of the cards during 2005 and wrote off the unsold cards amounting to 
P10,197,124.00 million in 2005.  On February 2, 2007, ABLE received a letter from PAGCOR stating the conditions to 
continue the operations of ICBG2. On December 12, 2008, ABLE resumed commercial operations of ICBG2 scratch cards. 

 
On May 8, 2001, PAGCOR granted the Group the authority to operate and conduct Electronic Bingo Games (E-bingo). In 
consideration for the Grants, ABLE shall pay PAGCOR 60% (representing 5% BIR franchise tax and 55% PAGCOR 
franchise fee) of their gross revenues from E-bingo operations.  Starting May 1, 2010, ABLE shall remit to PAGCOR 52.5% 
of the gross revenues from E-bingo games to be distributed as follows: 5% representing BIR franchise tax and 47.5% as 
PAGCOR franchise fee. 

 
On August 3, 2005, PAGCOR granted ABLE, the authority to distribute and sell pull-tabs or break-open cards in all branches 
and subsidiaries of ABLE. Distribution and sales of pull-tabs or break-open cards followed thereafter. In consideration of the 
Grant, ABLE shall pay PAGCOR 15% of gross card price, which will be remitted to PAGCOR upon draw-down of cards from 
the supplier regardless of quantity of cards sold. 

  
On September 27, 2005, PAGCOR granted the Group, the authority to operate and conduct rapid bingo games, subject to 
the approved terms and conditions of the New Rapid Bingo System (NRBS) operations and the use of the prescribed NRBS 
card format. In consideration of the Grant, the Group shall pay PAGCOR 15%, representing franchise fees and taxes, of its 
gross sales from its conduct and operations. 

 
On June 20, 2007, Philippine Congress passed Republic Act No. 9487, an act further amending P.D. 1869, otherwise known 
as the PAGCOR Charter.  PAGCOR was granted from the expiration of its original term on July 11, 2008, another period of 
twenty-five (25) years, renewable for another twenty-five (25) years.  

 
For all bingo sites, the Group has secured all other necessary licenses and permits at the local government level. 
 
FCLRC 
 
By virtue of CEZA Board Resolution No.05-003-01, dated 30 May 2001, FCLRC was granted by CEZA the exclusive 
authority as Master Licensor of internet gaming games and facilities in the CSEZFP for a renewable period of 2 years.  
CEZA also authorized FCLRC to assist CEZA in its functions as a Regulator of interactive gaming activities. Said 
appointment of FCLRC as Master Licensor was extended for 25 years by CEZA under Board Resolution No.09-002-06, 
dated 15 September 2006.  The same resolution also granted FCLRC the authority to manage and operate the 
telecommunication facility in CSEZFP. 
 
Government Regulations 
 
ABLE 

 
Effective November 1, 2005, Republic Act No. 9337, “An Act Amending the National Internal Revenue Code, as Amended, 
with Salient Features” particularly Section 27 (c) excluded PAGCOR from the list of government-owned or controlled 
corporations or agencies not subjected to the thirty five (35%) percent corporate income tax.  
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The Group believes that the payment of 5% Franchise Tax to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) is effectively equivalent 
to the corporate income tax for the taxable year 2011.  Bases on consultations with tax advisers, the management also 
believes that collection of income tax in addition to the 5% Franchise Tax has no legal basis. 

 
Pursuant to P.D. 1869, also known as PAGCOR Charter and amended by R.A. 9487, the 5% Franchise Tax shall be in lieu 
of all kinds of taxes, levies, fees or assessments of any kind, nature or description, levied, established or collected by any 
municipal, provincial,  or national government authority. 

 
In accordance with PAGCOR’s directives, the Group continues to abide by the provisions of P.D. 1869 (as amended by R.A. 
9487) whereby it pays the 5% Franchise Tax. 

  
Except for RA No. 9337 cited above and the local government regulations on the business of gaming as discussed under 
the item “Major Risks Involved in the Business” below, the Company is not aware of any other government regulation, which 
would materially affect its operations. 
 
FCLRC 

 
As exclusive Master Licensor for interactive operations in the CSEZFP, FCLRC is entitled to tax incentives under Section 4c 
of RA No. 7922 (CEZA law). No taxes, local and national shall be imposed on business establishments operating within the 
CSEZFP.  In lieu of paying taxes, FCLRC shall pay and remit to the National Government 5% of their gross income less 
allowable deductions.  Gross income shall refer to gross sales or gross revenues derived from business activity within the 
CSEZFP, net of sales discounts, sales returns and allowances and minus costs of sales or direct costs but before any 
deduction is made for administrative, marketing, selling and/or operating expenses or incidental losses during a given 
taxable period. 
 
Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties 
 
The Company’s transaction with ABLE consists mainly of non-interest bearing advances, while ABLE’s related party 
transactions with its subsidiaries and/or affiliates including FCLRC consist mainly of non-interest bearing advances to and 
from subsidiaries and/or affiliates, officers and employees and supply of bingo cards and supplies.  FCLRC related party 
transactions also consist mainly of non-interest bearing advances to its officers and employees which are subject to 
liquidation within 12 months from date granted or collectible in cash upon demand. 
 
Research and Development 
 
ABLE 
 
Development of other bingo games/variants does not require that much expenditure since most are only ideas developed by 
ABLE’s marketing people. ABLE also participates in Bingo and related gaming trade shows to evaluate if new games 
offered may be introduced to its own operations. The expenses in attending these trade shows are not significant. 
 
FCLRC 

 
Telecommunication facilities and services of FCLRC are continuously updated to the latest advances in hardware and 
software technology to ensure that FCLRC’s locators are provided with quality broadband and high-speed data services. 
 
Cost and effects of compliance with environmental laws 

 
All ABLE and affiliate bingo parlors have complied with the provisions of Smoking Ordinances issued by most local 
government units. All bingo parlors have made provisions in its playing area to accommodate smokers and non-smokers 
alike. Future expansions and parlor upgrades will incorporate enclosures and advanced air-purifying systems. 
 
FCLRC also complies with environmental laws being enforced by CEZA in the Cagayan Special Economic Zone and Free 
Port (CSEZFP). 
 
Employees 

 
LRWC has 7 and 6 employees in 2011 and 2010 respectively, while ABLE and its subsidiaries have a total headcount 
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(including personnel provided by manpower agencies) of 1,035 and 1,033 in 2011 and 2010 respectively.  On the other 
hand, FCLRC has 67 and 68 employees in 2011 and 2010 respectively, while LRLDI has 2 employees for 2011 and 1 
employee for 2010. BCGLC, a recently acquired company has 26 employees by the end of 2011. For the year 2011, the 
Company and its subsidiaries, ABLE, FCLRC, LRLDI and BCGLC are not expected to have major changes in their 
employment portfolios.  Their employees are not subject to a collective bargaining agreement. The Company does not have 
a stock option plan as part of its remuneration to all directors and senior management. 
 
Major Risks Involved in the Business 
 
ABLE 
 
ABLE and its subsidiaries operate bingo parlors. By the nature of the business (gaming), there is a risk of possible non-
renewal of business permits by the local governments. To counter this risk ABLE and subsidiaries obtained ordinances to do 
business from the respective local Sanggunian Mangbabatas. The business is located in high traffic areas, specifically in 
SM and Robinson malls, thus there is also risk of difficulty in finding similar high traffic areas should the lease contracts not 
be renewed upon expiration. ABLE has expanded to other locations so the effect of non-renewal of one or two leases will 
not have significant effect on ABLE’s results of operations. 
 
FCLRC 
 
As revenues are dependent to locators whose business is internet gaming operations outside the Philippines, potential or 
future government regulations in countries where internet gaming operations is presently allowed, can be considered as a 
major business concern for FCLRC. 

 
Properties  

 
The major assets of the Company and its subsidiaries are: building, furniture & fixtures, leasehold improvements, bingo 
equipments and paraphernalia. There are no real estate properties owned. In the next 12 months, the Company through its 
subsidiary LR Land Developers, Inc. (LRLDI) is considering acquiring other properties in the vicinity of Cagayan Special 
Economic Zone Free Port for the purpose of making facilities available to FCLRC’s future locators. 
 

 ABLE and its subsidiaries lease bingo parlors ranging in size from 90 to 2,000 square meters located in major shopping 
malls in Metro Manila and in key provincial cities.  Lease term ranges from one (1) to five (5) years.  All lease agreements 
have provisions for renewal subject to terms and conditions mutually agreed upon by all parties. All lease payment 
computations are based on a fixed rate per square meter of occupied space or on a certain percentage of bingo cards 
sales.  Total lease payments amounted to P 213.5 million in 2011 and P 197.5 million in 2010. 

 
 
Legal Proceedings 

 
Except for the following, there are no other legal proceedings to which the Company or ABLE or its subsidiaries is a party: 
                                                                                                                          

             (1.) “People of the Philippines vs. Ryan Baltazar,”  
Criminal Case No. 135459,  

               Branch 67, Pasig City 
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
               Case Summary:   
 

This is a complaint for violation of Article 315, paragraph 3(b) of the Revised Penal code for estafa committed by resorting to 
some fraudulent practice to ensure success in a gambling game.  On September 2, 2006, a glitch occurred in the generation 
of winning numbers for New Rapid Bingo Game - Bingo Draw No. 18652. The winning numbers flashed on the television 
screens were different from those transmitted to the cashiers’ terminals.  At such time, respondent Baltazar was the 
Application Operator on duty and the one manning the bingo generator machine.  Because of the ensuing confusion, 
respondent Baltazar advised the cashiers to pay the prizes of all winning tickets and cash shortages shall be reimbursed.  
The following day, accused Baltazar sent text messages to co-employees, apologizing and admitting responsibility for the 
incident.  
 
Status: 
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On November 21, 2011, we presented ABLE’s Treasury Section Head as a witness to testify to the damages incurred by the 
company and presented photocopies of documents with the purpose of proving the actual damages sustained. Continuation 
of the trial for further presentation of our evidence was set to March 16, 2012.  
 
(2.) “Bingo Palace Corporation vs. Ana Santos,”  
 XV-13-INQ-10J-01412,  

               OCP, Pasay City 
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
              Case Summary:   

 
This is a complaint for Falsification of Private Documents filed by Bingo Palace Corporation against Ms. Ana Santos before 
the Office of the City Prosecutor of Pasay. 
 
Status: 
 
On November 23, 2010, respondent Ms. Ana Santos filed her Counter-Affidavit before Assistant City Prosecutor, Teresa P. 
Purzuelo.  On December 7, 2010, Bingo Palace Corporation filed its Reply-Affidavit.  On December 17, 2010, Bingo Palace 
Corporation filed its Supplemental Reply-Affidavit.  On January 13, 2011, respondent filed her Rejoinder Affidavit.  This case 
is now pending resolution by the Office of the City Prosecutor of Pasay. 
 
(3.) “Roan Bakingkito vs. Bingo Bonanza Corporation, Direct Sales 
Support & Personnel Services, Inc., et al.” NLRC Case No. 02-02338-10 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
Case Summary: 
 
This is a complaint for constructive dismissal and alleged non-payment of rest day premium service incentive leave and 
damages filed by Ms. Roan Bakingkito against Bingo Bonanza Corporation and Direct Sales Support & Personnel Services, 
Inc. 
 
Status: 
 
In a decision dated September 20, 2010, the Labor Arbiter declared that complainant was an employee of Direct Sales 
Support & Personnel Services, Inc., and not of the Company.  Thus Direct Sales Support & Personnel Services, Inc. was 
found liable for illegally dismissing complainant and ordered to pay complainant salaries corresponding to the unexpired 
term of her employment contract.   Bingo Bonanza, Inc. has not received any notice of appeal or any other pleading from 
the other parties. Therefore, the case may now be considered closed. 
 
(4.) “Roy K. Gervacio  vs. Bingo Bonanza Corporation, Alfredo B. Benitez” 
NLRC G.R. No. 198482 

 ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
Case Summary: 
 
This is an illegal dismissal case filed by Roy K. Gervacio (Gervacio) against Bingo Bonanza Corporation and/or Alfredo B. 
Benitez with claims for underpayment of salaries, 13th month pay and other money claims.  The Labor Arbiter dismissed the 
complaint for lack of merit.  On appeal, the National Labor Relations Commission (NLRC) reversed its earlier ruling and 
upheld the validity of the dismissal of the complaint assailing the ruling of the NLRC.  However, the CA finding no grave 
abuse of discretion on the part of the NLRC upheld the questioned ruling.   Gervacio appealed the decision before the 
Supreme Court.  In its Resolution dated October 19, 2011, the Supreme Court Third Division held the dismissal of Gervacio 
was valid.  
 
Status: 
 
On December 21, 2011, Gervacio timely filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) of the said October 19, 2011 Supreme 
Court Resolution. The said MR is now pending resolution. 
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(5.) “South Entertainment Gallery, Inc. vs. Commissioner of Internal 
Revenue”  

               CTA Case No. 8257 
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
Case Summary: 
 
This is an appeal by way of Petition for Review (with Prayer for Issuance of Temporary Restraining Order and/or Writ of 
Preliminary Injunction) filed on March 31, 2011 with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) contesting the validity of the Warrant of 
Distraint and/or Levy (WDL) issued by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, through its Revenue District Office No. 21B, 
South Pamapanga, for collection of alleged deficiency income tax and value –added tax for taxable year 2009 in the 
aggregate amount of  P4,024,393.51. The Company assails the validity of the WDL for failure to receive any Formal 
Assessment Notice covering alleged deficiency taxes for taxable year 2005 in violation of the due process requirements 
under Section 228 of the 1997 National Internal Revenue Code and Revenue Regulations No. 12-99. 
  
Status: 
 
The Company has terminated its presentation of evidence and filed its Formal Offer of Evidence on December 16, 2011.  
The next hearing for responder BIR’s turn to present evidence is set on March 28, 2012.  
 
(6.) “South Entertainment Gallery, Inc. vs. Commissioner of Internal 
Revenue”  

               CTA Case No. 8286 
 ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
Case Summary: 
 
This is an appeal by way of Petition for Review (with Prayer for Issuance of Temporary Restraining Order and/or Writ of 
Preliminary Injunction) filed on May 11, 2011 with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) contesting the validity of the Warrant of 
Distraint and/or Levy (WDL) issued by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, through its Revenue District Office No. 21B, 
South Pamapanga, for collection of alleged deficiency income tax and value –added tax for taxable year 2009 in the 
aggregate amount of  P39,788,105.55. The Company assails the validity of the WDL for failure to receive any Formal 
Assessment Notice covering alleged deficiency taxes for taxable year 2007 in violation of the due process requirements 
under Section 228 of the 1997 National Internal Revenue Code and Revenue Regulations No. 12-99. 
  
Status: 
 
Trial of this case on ongoing.  The next hearing for the presentation of evidence for the Company is on April 12, 2012. 
 

 
Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

 
 (a) An annual meeting of stockholders of the registrant was held on July 29, 2011. 
  
 (b) During the said annual meeting the following persons were elected as directors of the registrant: 
  
 1. Reynaldo P. Bantug 
 2. Jose Conrado Benitez 
 3. Edgardo S. Lopez 
 4. Renato G. Nuñez 
 5. Willy N. Ocier 
 6. Bienvenido M. Santiago 
 7. Wilson L. Sy 
 8. Eusebio H. Tanco 
 9. Geoffrey L. Uymatiao 
 
  

with the following as independent directors under Section 38 of the Security Regulation Code (RA 87): 
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10.  Anthony A. Almeda 
 11. Clarita T. Zarraga 
  

Except for Mr. Wilson L. Sy and Mr. Eusebio H. Tanco, newly elected directors, all other directors were re-elected 
to registrant’s Board of Directors. 

 
(c)   During the annual meeting of stockholders of the registrant last 29 July 2011, the following matters were submitted 

to a vote of and duly approved by the stockholders of the registrant: (i) issuance of One Hundred Fifty Million 
Shares (150,000,000) from the unissued capital stock of the Corporation to Grandshares Inc. (100M shares), 
Pacific Online System Corporation (25M shares), Vantage Equities Inc. (25M shares); (ii) the waiver of the 
Philippine Stock Exchange requirement for the Corporation to conduct a rights or public offering of the subscribed 
shares for related party transactions as the private placement of the subscribers to the said shares; (iii) the 
adoption of Management Incentive Stock Option Plan; (iv) the appointment of KPMG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., 
CPA’s as the external auditor; (v) the resolution authorizing the Corporation to act as surety of its wholly owned 
subsidiary, AB Leisure Global, Inc., for an Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (OLSA) to be executed among 
AB Leisure Global, Inc., as borrower and Banco De Oro Unibank, Inc. as Lender, and Banco De Oro Unibank, 
Inc.-Trust and Investments Group as Collateral Trustee; and (vi) the delegation of authority to the Board of 
Directors to approve the terms and conditions of this OLSA.   

   
 (d)  No other matter has been submitted to a vote of security holders otherwise than at a meeting of such security 

holders. 
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PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 
 

(1) Market Information 
 

Principal market where the equity is traded – Philippine Stock Exchange 
 
The table shows the high & low prices of the company’s share within the last two fiscal years and for the first recent quarter 
of the current year, including the volume of transactions for each quarter. 

  
IN PHILIPPINE PESO QUARTER 

ENDING HIGH LOW VOLUME* 

JAN-MAR 2010 2.16 1.10 35,251,000 
APR-JUN 2010 2.06 1.46 18,310,000 
JUL-SEP 2010 2.09 1.52 28,012,000 
OCT-DEC 2010 3.90 1.86 85,062,000 
JAN-MAR 2011 10.32 3.50 553,491,100 
APR-JUN 2011 12.18 8.96 357,743,200 
JUL-SEP 2011 11.12 5.90 202,728,500 
OCT-DEC 2011 10.30 6.11 247,973,100 
JAN-MAR 2012 9.77 6.28 184,999,100 

    *Total main board volume for the quarter 
    

Closing Market Price as of December 31, 2011 is P9.09 per share. While the Closing Market Price as of May 31, 2012 is 
P6.80 per share. 

 
The Company’s earnings (loss) per share are: (P0.0383) per share in 2011 and P0.2472 in 2010. 

                
(2) Holders 

 
The stock transfer agent reported 1,882 holders of common shares of the registrant as of March 31, 2012. 
 
As of March 31, 2012, the top 20 shareholders, the number of common shares held and the percentage of common shares 
held by each are as follows: 

 
 Name No. Of Shares Held % To Total 
1. PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 582,462,084 58.25 
2. Grandshares Inc. 100,000,000 10.00 
3. Zoraymee Holdings, Inc.  86,977,358 8.70 
4. Alfredo Abelardo B. Benitez 68,319,999 6.83 
5. Dominique L. Benitez 26,400,000 2.64 
6. Pacific Online Systems Corporation 25,000,000 2.50 
7. Vantage Equities, Inc. 25,000,000 2.50 
8. AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. 17,972,500 1.80 
9. PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino) 17,621,566 1.76 
10. Zoraymee Holdings, Inc. 14,600,000 1.46 
11. Zoraymee Holdings, Inc. 9,451,900 .95 
12. Wilson L. Sy 1,905,500 .19 
13. Willy Ng Ocier 1,771,000 .18 
14. Henry T. Sy Jr. 1,274,687 .13 
15. Paul Luis Paul P. Alejandrino 1,188,520 .12 
16. OCX Development Corporation 860,000 .09 
17. Liberty Farms, Inc. 674,274 .07 
18. Provident Insurance Corporation 492,519 .05 
19. Brisot Economic Development Corporation 426,670 .04 
20. Visayan Surety & Insurance Corporation 405,245 .04 
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(3)  Dividends 
 
 The Company does not have any restrictions which limit the ability to pay dividends on common equity or that are likely to 

do so except in cases where the Company does not have enough retained earnings or is in a deficit position. For five 
consecutive years, the Company was able to distribute cash dividend to its shareholders. During the annual stockholders’ 
meeting held on July 29, 2011, the Board of Directors (BOD) declared cash dividend thrice, P0.03 per share with record 
date of September 28, 2011, another P0.025 per share with record date of January 30, 2012, and another P0.02 with record 
date of February 29, 2012. BOD also declared cash dividends equivalent to P0.03 per share in 2007, P0.06 per share in 
2008, P0.06 per share in 2009 and P0.08 per share in 2010. 
 

(4)  Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities 
 
On July 2, 2008, the Company approved the issuance of 37,000,000 shares out of the unissued portion of its authorized 
capital stock in favor of Asianlogic Limited (ALOG) at the subscription price of P3.10 per share or an aggregate amount of 
One Hundred Fourteen Million Seven Hundred Thousand Pesos (P114,700,000). Asianlogic Limited deferred this 
subscription indefinitely in view of the worldwide adverse market conditions. The Corporation and Asianlogic have agreed to 
revisit this planned subscription to such time when the market conditions are more stable. 

 
On March 21, 2011, the Registrant’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of One Hundred Fifty Million shares 
from the unissued portion of its capital stock through private placement. By virtue of Subscription Agreements all dated 
March 24, 2011, the following companies subscribed to a total of 150,000,000 shares at the stipulated subscription price of 
P 7.50 per share:  
 

Name of Subscriber/Investor Number of Shares Subscription Amount (P) 
Grandshares Inc.  100,000,000 750,000,000.00 
Pacific Online Systems Corporation  25,000,000 187,500,000.00 
Vantage Equities, Inc.  25,000,000 187,500,000.00 

 
Twenty-Five percent (25%) of the subscription amount was paid upon the execution of the Subscription Agreements, while 
the remaining Seventy-Five percent (75%) was paid on May 15, 2011. 
 
Except for these issuances, the Company has not sold any unregistered securities within the last three (3) years. 
  

 Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation 
   

LRWC Operations 
 
As mentioned, LRWC is functioning basically as a holding company with minimal operations. The Company is focusing its 
endeavor in supporting the productivity programs of its subsidiaries as follows: (1) AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. (ABLE – 100% 
owned); (2) LR Land Developers, Inc. (LRLDI – 100% owned); (3) AB Leisure Global, Inc. (ABLGI – 100% owned); (4) First 
Cagayan Leisure and Resort Corporation (FCLRC – 69.68% owned); (5) Bingo Bonanza (HK) Ltd. (BBL - 60% owned); and 
(6) Blue Chip Gaming and Leisure Corporation (BCGLC – 70% owned). 

                 
Based on PFRS 3, Business Combination, LRWC and subsidiaries are required to perform an annual test for goodwill 
impairment. As a result of the annual test, there is no need to provide for allowance for impairment of goodwill in 2011. 
 
Starting in 2009, LRWC did not recognize any losses from BLRI, a 30% owned affiliate, as its investment balance has 
already been consumed. 
 
2011 vs. 2010 
 
ABLE Operations 
 
ABLE posted a total sales of P3,629.7 million for 2011,  a P72.8 million or  2.0% growth from the P3,556.9 million total sales 
for 2010. Sales from Electronic Bingo operations contributed to the increase in sales partly offset by decreases in the sales 
of Traditional Bingo, Rapid Bingo, Pull Tabs and Instant Charity Bingo. 
 
The traditional bingo remains the Company’s principal product line with annual sales of P2,005.9 million or 55.3% 
contribution to total sales. Annual sales for 2011 decreased by P189.1 million or 8.6% from 2010 sales of P2,194.9 million. 
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ABLE currently operates 56 bingo parlors; an increase of 11 bingo parlors from last year’s number of bingo parlors. The 
total number of bingo parlors does not include two (2) dormant bingo parlors, which are to be relocated and two (2) minority 
owned affiliates. 
 
Sales increase faster with new gaming products that are played with higher frequency and are not time bound as the 
traditional bingo game. Thus, ABLE expanded its game offerings to a variety of gaming products that could be played 
simultaneously with the programmed bingo games. These products include Electronic Bingo, Rapid Bingo, Pull Tabs and 
Instant Charity Bingo. 
 
The sales of Electronic Bingo for 2011 of P1,151.8 million increased by P292.2 million or 34.0% from the P859.6 million 
sales in 2010. At the end of December 31, 2011, there were a total of 2,985 E-bingo machines in 53 bingo parlors compared 
with 2,162 E-bingo machines in 44 bingo parlors as of December 31, 2010.  These bingo parlors are either directly owned 
by ABLE or owned through subsidiaries. 
 
The sales of Rapid bingo for 2011 of P450.8 million decreased by P15.9 million or 3.4% from the P466.7 million sales in 
2010. ABLE launched Rapid Bingo, late August 2005 with fourteen (14) terminals in fourteen (14) bingo parlors. By end of 
December 2011, there were a total of 81 Rapid Bingo terminals in 66 bingo parlors installed as compared to 86 terminals in 
66 bingo parlors in 2010. 
 
ABLE also introduced the Pull Tabs in December 2005 in 32 bingo parlors. The sales of Pull Tabs contributed P12.8 million 
or 0.4% to 2011 total sales as compared to 2010 sales of P19.1 million. 
 
PAGCOR granted ABLE the authority to be the primary and exclusive distributor of the Instant Charity Bingo Game II 
(ICBG2) on June 13, 2000.  However, because of the poor sales performance, ABLE discontinued the distribution of the 
cards in 2005.   On December 12, 2008, ABLE resumed commercial operations of the ICBG2 scratch cards.   It contributed 
P 8.5 million or 0.2% to total sales of 2011 as compared to P 16.5 million last year. 

             
There was an slight increase in ABLE’s consolidated operating expenses for 2011, amounting to P2,394.1 million or about 
1.2% from P2,335.1 million in 2010.  This is mainly due to the acquisition of a new subsidiary as well as the opening of new 
bingo parlors and other reasons as stated: (1) Rent of  P16.1 million or 8.1%; (2) Contracted Services of  P10.0 million or 
12.0%; (3) Employees Benefits of P6.2 million or 10.6%; (4) Depreciation and Amortization of P8.0 million or 16.7%;  (5) 
Bingo cards and supplies of P1.9 million or 7.9%; (6) Taxes and Licenses of P1.8 million or 8.7%; and (7) “Others” 
Expenses of P9.2 million or 11.1% due to the volume of programmed bingo games operations (Rapid Bingo and E-Bingo) in 
2011 coupled with enhanced marketing activities for programmed bingo games. In 2011, ABLE’s management decided to 
recognize an impairment loss on its receivables amounting to P64.6 million as a conservative measure in its effort to present 
a reasonable results of operations.   

 
The resulting net expense in the “Other Income (Expense) account” in 2011 of P 2.4 million decreased by P17.7 million from 
P20.1 million in 2010 mainly due to income derived from sales of LRWC shares coupled with lower interest expense 
payments arising from substantial payment of loan principal.  
 
ABLE posted a consolidated net income (exclusive of minority interest) of P51.7 million in 2011, after impairment loss on 
receivables of P64.6 million,  a decrease of P86.2 million or 62.5% from the P137.9 million consolidated net income in 2010. 
 
FCLRC Operations 
 
For the year 2011, FCLRC posted total revenues (exclusive of CEZA fees) of P355.8 million. These were generated from 
hosting and service fees amounting to P278.0 million and from license application and renewal fees, amounting to P77.7 
million.  Total revenues in 2011 were higher than the revenues in 2010 at P295.7 million.   CEZA fees in 2011 increased to 
P139.0 million versus P117.3 million in 2010, or an increase of P21.8 million or 18.6% than last year’s fees. Net revenues 
increased by P38.3 million or 21.5% as compared to last year.  
 
FCLRC generated gross revenues from foreign sales amounting to P355.8 million in 2011; P295.7 million in 2010 and   
P301.9 million in 2009 respectively.  Revenues from foreign sales comprise 100% of total gross revenues for the years 
2011, 2010 and 2009. 
 
Cost and operating expenses increased by P14.4 million or 14.4% from last year’s P99.7 million. Increases in expenses 
were attributable to the following: (1) Depreciation and Amortization by P6.0 million or 43.0% due to the accelerated 
depreciation of the airstrip improvements and (2) Rent by P1.1 million or 7.5% owing to the change in expense recognition 
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method. These afore-mentioned increases in expenses were offset by the following decreases: (1) Salaries, wages and 
benefits by P2.9 million or 7.7%; (2) Transportation and Travel by P0.4 million or 6.6%; (3) Representation by P0.3 million or 
15.2%; (4) Taxes and licenses by P0.3 million or 43.4% and (5)“Others” Expenses by P0.6 million or 44.7% primarily due to 
the Company’s efforts to reduce cost by implementing its cost saving measures and exercising over-all financial prudence 
while still maintaining its top-notch and efficient service to its locators operating in the Cagayan Special Economic Zone 
Free Port (CSEZFP). In 2011, FCLRC’s management decided to recognize an impairment loss on its receivables amounting 
to P11.7 million as a conservative measure in its effort to present a reasonable results of operations.   

 
The resulting net income in the “Other Income (Expense) - Net” account of P63.5 million in 2011, grew by P18.5 million or 
41.1% as compared to P45.0 million in 2010. The growth is principally attributable to the increase in other income derived 
from rental of gaming facility and equipment to locators.  

 
Thus, FCLRC posted a net income of P156.5 million in 2011, an increase of P40.0 million or 34.3% than last year’s P116.5 
million. The growth in net income is mainly attributable to the increase in the resulting income from the “Other Income 
(Expense) – Net” account in addition to the increase in revenues.  
 
Net income generated from foreign revenues amounted to P146.6 million or 93.7% of P156.5 million in 2011; P109.1 million 
or 93.6% of P116.5 million in 2010 and P95.0 million or 80.0% of P118.6 million in 2009 respectively. 
 
FCCDCI, a 60% owned subsidiary of FCLRC, posted a net income of P40.4 million in 2011 and P51.6 million in 2010; a 
P11.2 million or 21.6% decrease due to the decrease in its revenues and recognition of foreign exchange loss in its books.  
 
LRLDI Operations 
 
LRLDI posted total rent income of P15.0 million in 2011 as compared to P3.9 million in 2010.  The growth of P11.1 million is 
due to a lease agreement entered by LRLDI last November 2010, thus providing for the substantial increase in rental 
income. Total operating expenses of P1.4 million in 2011, increased by P0.6 million as compared to P0.8 million in 2010. 
The increase in expenses is mainly attributable to the hiring of an additional employee to provide an effective and well-
organized service to its increasing number of lessees.   Hence, LRLDI posted a net income of P4.5 million in 2011, as 
compared to a net loss of P1.7 million last year.   
 
ABLGI Operations  
 
ABLGI has not started its commercial operations as of December 31, 2011.  Total comprehensive loss amounted to P169.0 
million in 2011 and P0.5 million in 2010.  The 2011 comprehensive loss pertains mainly to pre-operating expenses 
consisting of rent expense on the land leased from Belle Corporation, consultancy fees and other expenses intended for the 
casino project. 
 

               BCGLC Operations 
 

The Group acquired 70% of BCGLC’s outstanding capital stock on April 27, 2011. BCGLC generated gross revenues from 
slot machines totaling P64.7 million in 2011. Total operating expenses amounted to P66.7 million.  Thus, net loss of BCGLC 
in 2011 amounted to P2.1 million.  

 
BBL Operations 

 
As of December 31, 2011, BBL, a 60% owned subsidiary of LRWC, has not started its commercial operations.  BBL, 
however, incurred expenses amounting to P14.8 million in 2011.  

 
 
LRWC 
 
The Group’s core businesses realized, excluding minority interest, consolidated net income of P205.7 million in 2011, as 
compared with consolidated net income of the same Group’s core businesses of P205.0 million in 2010. 
 
However, LRWC posted instead a consolidated net loss (exclusive of minority interest) of P36.4 million in 2011 due to net 
losses (pre-opening expenses) contributed to the Group by ABLGI (P168.6 million) and BBL (P8.9 million).  Further, there 
was impairment recognized on ABLE’s advances to Royal Highland Leisure and Resort Corporation (RHLRC) amounting to 
P64.6 million in 2011. 
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RHLRC has existing contract with CJH Development Corporation (CJHDC) relating to a project situated at Camp John Hay, 
Baguio City. CJHDC is currently involved in a legal controversy with Bases Conversion Development Corporation. 
Consequently, the Group deemed it prudent to make partial impairment on the advances. 
 
Consolidated Financial Condition 
 
The changes in total assets of LRWC and subsidiaries are accounted as follows: (1) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
of P842.7 million attributable to LRWC’s proceeds from issuance of stocks; (2) Increase in Prepaid expenses and other 
current assets of P206.3 million owing to ABLGI’s prepaid rent, advances to contractors and suppliers; (3) Due from Related 
Parties of P22.6 million mainly due to FCLRC’s short term advances to an affiliate for working capital and construction 
projects requirements; (4) Increase in Property and Equipment – Net of P 133.3 million mainly attributable to ABLGI’s on-
going construction, improvements and outfitting of the casino and ABLE’s opening of several new bingo parlors; (5) 
Goodwill – Net of P15.3 million attributable to LRWC’s acquisition of BCGLC and ABLE’s acquisition of Big Time Gaming; 
(6) Deferred Tax Assets of P 64.5 million due to ABLGI’s income tax benefit and (7) Other Assets – Net of P110.1 million 
due to LRLDI’s advances to CPVDC and CLPDC to finance the construction and development of CSEZFP International 
Airport in Cagayan. These increases in total assets were partly offset by the following: (1) Decrease in Receivables - Net of 
P113.3 million due mainly to ABLE’s substantial collection of its advances from RHLRC and BCGLC in addition to its 
recognition of impairment losses from its receivables and (2) Decrease in Investments and Advances - Net of P18.1 million 
mainly due to BLRI’s partial payment of its advances. Thus, the total assets of LRWC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 
2011 of P3,702.4 million increased by P1,272.8 million or 52.4% from P2,429.6 million as of December 31, 2010. 
  
The following are the changes in the total liabilities of LRWC: (1) Increase in Trade and Other Payables of P230.2 million is 
mainly due to FCLRC’s liability to CEZA and ABLGI’s liability to various suppliers and rent & tax accruals; (2) Increase in 
Short Term Loans Payable of P15.5 million owing to ABLE’s short term borrowings to finance its working capital 
requirements; (3) Increase in Income Tax Payable of P3.2 million due to FCLRC’s increase in net income; (4) Increase in 
Retirement Benefits Liability of P4.8 million principally owing to ABLE’s accrual of retirement obligation and (5) Increase in 
Rent Deposit of P1.2 million because of LRLDI’s renewal of lease agreement.  The afore-mentioned increases were partially 
offset by the following decreases in liabilities principally due to ABLE’s substantial settlement of its obligations and other 
reasons as stated: (1) Long Term Loans Payable (inclusive of current portion) of P42.2 million also due to FCLRC’s 
considerable payment of its obligation and (2) Decrease in Obligations under finance lease (inclusive of current portion) of 
P5.2 million.  

    
Cash as of December 31, 2011 of P944.3 million grew by P842.7 million or 829.7% from P101.6 million for the same period 
last year. The improvement is mainly attributable to cash generated from financing activities arising from the proceeds from 
issuance of LRWC share of stocks.  
 
The Company and its subsidiaries: 

 
a) Have no known trends or any demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in or that are likely to 

result in the liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way; 
b) Have no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including 

any default or acceleration of an obligation; 
c) Have no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and 

other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period; 
d) Have not breached any loans, leases or other indebtedness or financing agreement; and 
e) Have no material commitment for capital expenditure, aside from those already discussed as continuous 

development of new bingo parlors. 
 
 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
The Company monitors its performance and benchmarks itself to prior years’ results in terms of the following 
indicators: 
 
                     As   Of                                                 
       Dec 31, 2011           Dec 31, 2010  
Liquidity 
     Current Ratio                180.9%                      96.0% 
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Leverage Ratio 
     Debt to Equity                              34.4%                 43.7%                    
 

               For  the Year Ended                 
       Dec 31, 2011          Dec 31, 2010  
Activity Ratio 

                           Rate of Payout to Net Revenues              55.4%                            57.7%    
      
Profitability Ratio 
     Return on Average Equity                         0.2%                             14.9%        
     Return on Average Assets               0.1%                             10.3%                                 
 
 
Solvency Ratio                                                                9.9%                             41.6% 
 
Interest Coverage Ratio                                                -0.08                                6.7 
 
Net Book Value Per Share                                              2.90                   2.04                                  

 
Earnings (Loss) Per Share                                       (0.0383)                           0.2472                          
 
 
The manner by which the Company calculates the above indicators is as follows: 
       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Performance Indicator  Formula 
          
Current Ratio    Current Assets   
      Current Liabilities   
             
Debt to Equity Ratio    Total Liability   
      Stockholders' Equity   
             
Rate of Payout to Net Revenues    Payout   
      Net Revenues   
             
Return on Average Equity  Net Income   
      Average Equity   
             
Return on Average Assets  Net Income   
      Average Total Assets   
            
Solvency Ratio 
 

   

Net Income + Depreciation 
Total Liabilities 

   
Interest Coverage Ratio 
 
    

Income(Loss) Before Interest & Tax 
Interest Expense 

   
Earnings per Share    Average Total Assets     

    
Weighted average number of 

shares outstanding    
Net Book Value    Total Equity   

    
Weighted average number of 

shares outstanding    

2011 2010 
 

1,581,038,642 
873,744,107 

 

 
621,953,680 
647,918,678 

 
 

946,824,337 
2,755,534,069 

 

 
739,328,093 

1,690,260,922 
 

1,476,666,169 
2,665,389,969 

 

1,542,705,228 
2,672,193,322 

 
4,334,694 

2,222,897,495 
 

241,015,716 
1,612,455,037 

 
4,334,694 

3,065,973,710 
 

241,015,716 
2,345,394,596 

 

93,937,777 
946,824,337 

 

307,261,713 
739,328,093 

 
(3,574,742) 
46,256,285 

 

291,465,520 
43,195,354 

 
3,065,973,710 
950,040,344 

 

2,345,394,596 
    829,496,594 

2,755,534,069 
950,040,344 

1,690,260,922 
    829,496,594 
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The Company believes that the measure of its Liquidity through the Current Ratio is indicative of its ability to convert its 
asset resources into cash in order to pay current obligations. Generally, the higher the ratio, the better is the liquidity of the 
Company.  As of the year ended 2011, the Company posted a current ratio of 180.9%; a 84.9% decrease from 96% in 2010. 

 
The Leverage Ratio measures the effectiveness of the Company’s financing decisions and risk taking as shown in the Debt 
to Equity Ratio.  It is the relationship between the total debts of the Company and its total stockholders’ equity.  It measures 
the total riskiness of the firm in terms of its ability to service both interest and principal payment commitments. The higher 
the ratio, the higher is the Company’s leverage.  As of the year ended 2011, the Company reported a debt to equity ratio of 
34.4% or a 9.3% decrease from 43.7% in 2010. 

 
The Rate of Payout to Net Revenues (Payout Turn-over) is a measure of the Company’s efficiency by which it uses its 
resources to attain its objectives. It determines the effectiveness of the Company’s programmed games to generate 
revenues. As of the year ended 2011, the Payout Turn-over is at 55.4%, a slight decrease of 2.3% as compared to 57.7% in 
2010. 

 
The Company measures its profitability in two-ways: (1) Return on Average Equity and (2) Return on Average Assets.  The 
Return on Average Equity measures the residual income that accrues to the stockholders of the Company, while the Return 
on Average Assets measures the effectiveness of the management of asset resources to produce income.  As of the year 
ended 2011, the Company’s Return on Average Equity is 0.2% while the Return on Average Assets is at 0.1% as compared 
to 14.9% and 10.3% respectively in 2010. 
 
The solvency ratio is used to measure the Company’s ability to meet its debt obligations. Also, it provides a measurement of 
how likely the company will be to continue meeting its obligations. At the end of 2011, the solvency ratio is 9.9% as 
compared to 41.6% during the same period in 2010. 
 
The interest coverage ratio is used to determine how easily the Company can pay interest expenses on outstanding debts. 
As of the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company’s interest coverage ratio is (0.08) as compared to 6.7 during the 
same period in 2010. 

 
The Company also considers the Earnings per Share and Net Book Value as a useful tool for its stockholders.  The 
Earnings per Share is considered as an important variable in determining a share’s price. It is the portion of the Company’s 
profit to each outstanding share, while the Net Book Value is a measure of the Company’s net value scaled by the number 
of shares outstanding.  As of the year ended 2011, the Company’s Loss per Share is 0.0383 while the Net Book Value per 
Share is 2.90 as compared to 0.2472 and 2.04 respectively in 2010. 
 
2010 vs. 2009 
 
ABLE Operations 
 
ABLE posted a total sales of P3,606.9 million for 2010,  a P1.3 million or  0.04% growth from the P3,605.6 million total sales 
for 2009. Sales from Electronic Bingo operations contributed to the increase in sales partly offset by decreases in the sales 
of Traditional Bingo, Rapid Bingo, Pull Tabs and Instant Charity Bingo. 
 
The traditional bingo remains the Company’s principal product line with annual sales of P2,245.0 million or 62.2% 
contribution to total sales. Annual sales for 2010 decreased by P49.1 million or 2.1% from 2009 sales of P2,294.2 million. 
ABLE currently operates 45 bingo parlors; an increase of 5 bingo parlors from last year’s number of bingo parlors. The total 
number of bingo parlors does not include two (2) dormant bingo parlors, which are to be relocated and two(2) minority 
owned affiliates. 
 
Sales increase faster with new gaming products that are played with higher frequency and are not time bound as the 
traditional bingo game. Thus, ABLE expanded its game offerings to a variety of gaming products that could be played 
simultaneously with the programmed bingo games. These products include Electronic Bingo, Rapid Bingo, Pull Tabs and 
Instant Charity Bingo. 
 
The sales of Electronic Bingo for 2010 of P859.6 million increased by P85.8 million or 11.1% from the P773.9 million sales 
in 2009. At the end of December 31, 2010, there were a total of 2,162 E-bingo machines in 44 bingo parlors compared with 
1,891 E-bingo machines in 36 bingo parlors as of December 31, 2009.  These bingo parlors are either directly owned by 
ABLE or owned through subsidiaries. 
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The sales of Rapid bingo for 2010 of P466.7 million decreased by P17.5 million or 3.6% from the P484.2 million sales in 
2009. ABLE launched Rapid Bingo, late August 2005 with fourteen (14) terminals in fourteen (14) bingo parlors. By end of 
December 2010, there were a total of 86 Rapid Bingo terminals in 66 bingo parlors installed as compared to 76 terminals in 
59 bingo parlors in 2009. 
 
ABLE also introduced the Pull Tabs in December 2005 in 32 bingo parlors. The sales of Pull Tabs contributed P19.1 million 
to 2010 total sales or a decrease of P5.9 million or 23.5% from 2009 sales of P25.0 million. 
 
PAGCOR granted ABLE the authority to be the primary and exclusive distributor of the Instant Charity Bingo Game II 
(ICBG2) on June 13, 2000.  However, because of the poor sales performance, ABLE discontinued the distribution of the 
cards in 2005.   On December 12, 2008, ABLE resumed commercial operations of the ICBG2 scratch cards.   It contributed 
P 16.5 million or 0.5% to total sales of 2010 as compared to P 28.5 million last year. 

             
There was a minimal increase in ABLE’s consolidated operating expenses for 2010, amounting to P2,385.2 million or about 
0.02% increase from P2,385.7 million in 2009. This is mainly due to ABLE’s continuous cost reduction schemes as well as 
over-all financial prudence. The following operating expenses increased in 2010 mainly due to the opening of new bingo 
parlors and other reasons as stated: (1) Salaries and Wages of P8.6 million or 7.0%; (2) Taxes and Licenses of P1.8 million 
or 9.8% and (3) “Others” Expenses of P72.1 million or 118.8% due to the volume of programmed bingo games operations 
(Rapid Bingo and E-Bingo) in 2010 coupled with enhanced marketing activities for programmed bingo games. These 
increases were offset by the following decreases: (1) Employee Benefits of P 3.9 million or 6.3% owing to the improved 
employee incentives scheme and (2) Bingo Cards of P 19.0 million or 44.5% owing to the decrease in the sales of 
Traditional Bingo.  

 
The resulting net expense in the “Other Income (Expense) account” in 2010 of P 20.1 million increased by P3.3 million from 
P16.8 million in 2009 mainly due to  higher interest expense payments from bank loans coupled with a lower accrual of 
other income booked in 2010 than in 2009 .   
 
ABLE posted a consolidated net income (exclusive of minority interest) of P137.9 million in 2010, an increase of P10.1 
million or 7.9% from the P127.7 million consolidated net income in 2009. 
 
FCLRC Operations 
 
For the year 2010, FCLRC posted a net income of P116.5 million; a slight decrease of P2.1 million or 1.8% from P118.6 
million in 2009.  The slight decline is principally attributable to the increase in cost and operating expenses coupled with a 
decrease in other income derived from rental of gaming facility to locators and pre-termination of interactive hosting fee 
license.  
 
Total revenues (net of CEZA share) of P178.5 million for the year 2010 was generated from hosting and service fees 
amounting to P234.5 million and from license application and renewal fees, amounting to P61.2 million.  Total revenues in 
2010 were higher than the revenues in 2009 at P175.7 million.   CEZA fees in 2010 decreased to P117.3 million versus 
P126.1 million in 2009, or a decrease of P8.8 million or 7.0% than last year’s fees. 

 
Thus, FCLRC posted a net income of P116.5 million in 2010, a slight decrease of  P2.1 million or 1.8% than last year’s 
P118.6 million. The decline in net income is mainly attributable to the resulting income from the “Other Income (Expense) – 
Net” account amounting to P45.0 million as compared to last year’s resulting net income of P 48.9 million coupled with a 
slight increase in the total cost and operating expenses by P1.3 million or 1.3% from last year’s total expenses of P98.4 
million. In line with the Company’s over-all financial prudence and other cost saving measures, the following expenses 
decreased: (1) Transportation and Travel by P1.0 million or 13.7%; (2) Representation by P0.1 million or 5.3%; and (3) 
Taxes and Licenses by P0.06 million or 8.7%.  However, these expenses were partly offset by the increases in the following 
expenses: (1) Professional Fees by P0.8 million or 5.9% due to hiring of additional consultants; (2) Depreciation and 
Amortization by P1.0 million or 7.4% due to the purchase of additional transportation equipment; and (3) “Others” Expenses 
by P0.6 million or 68.3% primarily due to the Company’s efforts to provide a more efficient service to its locators operating in 
the Cagayan Special Economic Zone Free Port (CSEZFP). 
 
FCCDCI, a 60% owned subsidiary of FCLRC, posted a net income of P51.6 million in 2010 and P48.3 million in 2009; a 
P3.3 million or 6.8% increase due to the increase in its revenues and minimal increase in operating expenses. 
 
LRLDI Operations 
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In 2010, LRLDI entered into various lease agreements as lessor, with lease terms ranging from monthly to five (5) years.    
As of December 31, 2010, total rental income amounted to P3.9 million. Total operating expenses amounted to P0.8 million 
and P1.2 million for the years ended 2010 and 2009 respectively. 
 
ABLGI Operations 
 
As of December 31, 2010, ABLGI has not started its commercial operations.  The Company, however, incurred expenses 
amounting to P0.5 million in 2010. 
 
LRWC 
 
LRWC posted a consolidated net income (exclusive of minority interest) of P205.0 million in 2010; a P3.8 million or 1.9% 
increase from P201.2 million in 2009.  The growth is mainly attributable to ABLE’s increase in net income partly offset by 
FCLRC’s decrease in net income.  
 
Consolidated Financial Condition 
 
The changes in total assets of LRWC and subsidiaries are accounted as follows: (1) Increase in Due from Related Parties of 
P 5.2 million mainly due to ABLE’s short term advances to an affiliate, Insular Gaming, which was collected in the first 
quarter of 2011; (2) Increase in Property and Equipment – Net of P 199.4 million mainly attributable to ABLE’s opening of 
several new bingo parlors and  FCLRC’s acquisition of transportation equipment to augment the efficiency of their 
operations and  (3) Investment Property of P45.2 million attributable to FCLRC’s reclassification of facility improvements 
from Other Assets. These increases in total assets was partly offset by the following: (4) Decrease in Receivables - Net of 
P48.8 million due mainly to ABLE’s partial collection of its Advances to RHLRC as well as FCLRC’s partial collection of its 
trade receivables; (5) Decrease in Bingo Cards of P1.3 million due to reduction of inventory level; (6) Decrease in Prepaid 
Expenses and Other Current Assets of P9.4 million mainly due to FCLRC’s amortization of expired prepayments and (7) 
Decrease in Investments and Advances - Net of P18.1 million mainly due to BLRI’s partial payment of its advances. Thus, 
the total assets of LRWC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 of P2,429.6 million increased by P168.4 million or 7.4% 
from P2,261.2 million as of December 31, 2009. 
  
The following are the changes in the total liabilities of LRWC: (1) Increase in Long Term Loans Payable (inclusive of current 
portion) of P65.6 million attributable to ABLE’s increased bank borrowings to support its expansion plans; (2) Increase in 
Rent Deposit of P2.9 million owing to LRLDI’s operating lease agreements effective 2010 and (3) Increase in Retirement 
Benefits Liability of P2.8 million which represents the current service cost and amortization of transitional liability charged to 
operations in 2010.   The afore-mentioned increases were partially offset by decreases in the following liabilities due to 
ABLE’s and FCLRC’s settlement of its obligation and other reasons as stated: (4) Trade and Other Payables of P 40.6 
million; (5) Short-term Loans Payable of P13.9 million; (6) Long term obligation under finance lease (inclusive of current 
portion) of P2.2 million and (7) Income Tax Payable of P1.9 million due to the decrease in FCLRC’s taxable income. 

    
Cash as of December 31, 2010 of P101.6 million slightly decreased by P0.8 million or 0.8% from P102.3 million for the 
same period last year. The decline is attributable to the following: (1) Cash used in investing activities mainly due to the 
opening of several bingo parlors, as well as partial collection of advances from affiliates and (2) Cash used in financing 
activities as payments to trade and other payables, bank loans and financial lease.  These increases were partially offset by 
an increase in Cash provided by operating activities due to a higher posted net income for 2010. 
 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
The Company monitors its performance and benchmarks itself to prior years’ results in terms of the following 
indicators: 
                     As   Of                                                 
       Dec 31, 2010           Dec 31, 2009  
Liquidity 
     Current Ratio                     96.0%                      100.3% 
        
Leverage Ratio 
     Debt to Equity                            43.7%                    47.3%                  

               For  the Year Ended                 
       Dec 31, 2010          Dec 31, 2009  
Activity Ratio 
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                    Rate of Payout to Net Revenues              57.7%                            59.4%    
      
Profitability Ratio 
     Return on Average Equity                           14.9%                           16.4%        
     Return on Average Assets                        10.3%              10.8%                                 
 
Solvency Ratio                                                            41.6%                            41.5% 
 
Interest Coverage Ratio                                                 6.7                                 6.7 
 
Net Book Value Per Share                                                                 2.04                   1.83 
 
Earnings Per Share                                          0.2472                           0.2398 

 
The manner by which the Company calculates the above indicators is as follows: 
                 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Company believes that the measure of its Liquidity through the Current Ratio is indicative of its ability to convert its 
asset resources into cash in order to pay current obligations. Generally, the higher the ratio, the better is the liquidity of the 
Company.  As of the year ended 2010, the Company posted a current ratio of 96%; a 4.3% decrease from 100.3% in 2009. 

 
The Leverage Ratio measures the effectiveness of the Company’s financing decisions and risk taking as shown in the Debt 
to Equity Ratio.  It is the relationship between the total debts of the Company and its total stockholders’ equity.  It measures 
the total riskiness of the firm in terms of its ability to service both interest and principal payment commitments. The higher 
the ratio, the higher is the Company’s leverage.  As of the year ended 2010, the Company reported a debt to equity ratio of 
43.7% or a 3.6% decrease from 47.3% in 2009. 

 

Key Performance Indicator  Formula 
          
Current Ratio    Current Assets   
      Current Liabilities   
             
Debt to Equity Ratio    Total Liability   
      Stockholders' Equity   
             
Rate of Payout to Net Revenues    Payout   
      Net Revenues   
             
Return on Average Equity  Net Income   
      Average Equity   
             
Return on Average Assets  Net Income   
      Average Total Assets   
            
Solvency Ratio 
 

   

Net Income + Depreciation 
Total Liabilities 

   
Interest Coverage Ratio 
 
    

Income(Loss) Before Interest & Tax 
Interest Expense 

   
Earnings per Share    Net Income (Net of Minority)   

    
Weighted average number of 

shares outstanding    
Net Book Value    Total Equity   

    
Weighted average number of 

shares outstanding    

2010 2009 
 

621,953,680 
647,918,678 

 

 
676,944,489 
674,975,983 

 
 

739,328,093 
1,690,260,922 

 

726,551,026 
1,534,649,151 

 

1,542,705,228 
2,672,193,322 

 

1,607,457,261 
2,707,152,636 

 
241,015,716 

1,612,455,037 
 

238,374,354 
1,455,330,436 

 

241,015,716 
2,345,394,596 

 

238,374,354 
2,205,916,843 

 
307,261,713 
739,328,093 

 

301,439,602 
726,551,026 

 
291,465,520 
43,195,354 

 

289,295,718 
43,352,481 

 
2,345,394,596 

    829,496,594 
201,237,953 
839,190,796 

 
1,690,260,922 

    829,496,594 
1,534,649,151 
839,190,796 
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The Rate of Payout to Net Revenues (Payout Turn-over) is a measure of the Company’s efficiency by which it uses its 
resources to attain its objectives. It determines the effectiveness of the Company’s programmed games to generate 
revenues. As of the year ended 2010, the Payout Turn-over is at 57.7%, a slight decrease of 1.7% as compared to 59.4% in 
2009. 

 
The Company measures its profitability in two-ways: (1) Return on Average Equity and (2) Return on Average Assets.  The 
Return on Average Equity measures the residual income that accrues to the stockholders of the Company, while the Return 
on Average Assets measures the effectiveness of the management of asset resources to produce income.  As of the year 
ended 2010, the Company’s Return on Average Equity is 14.9% while the Return on Average Assets is at 10.3% as 
compared to 16.4% and 10.8% respectively in 2009. 
 
The solvency ratio is used to measure the Company’s ability to meet its debt obligations. Also, it provides a measurement of 
how likely the company will be to continue meeting its obligations. At the end of 2010, the solvency ratio is 41.6% as 
compared to 41.5% during the same period in 2009. 
 
The interest coverage ratio is used to determine how easily the Company can pay interest expenses on outstanding debts. 
As of the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company’s interest coverage ratio is both 6.7. 
 
The Company also considers the Earnings per Share and Net Book Value as a useful tool for its stockholders.  The 
Earnings per Share is considered as an important variable in determining a share’s price. It is the portion of the Company’s 
profit to each outstanding share, while the Net Book Value is a measure of the Company’s net value scaled by the number 
of shares outstanding.  As of the year ended 2010, the Company’s Earnings per Share is 0.2472 while the Net Book Value 
per Share is 2.04 as compared to is 0.2398 and 1.83 respectively in 2009. 
 
First Quarter 2012 vs. First Quarter 2011 
 
LRWC Operations 
 
LRWC is functioning basically as a holding company with minimal operations. The company is still focusing its endeavor in 
supporting the productivity programs of its subsidiaries as follows: (1) AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. (ABLE – 100% owned); (2) 
LR Land Developers, Inc. (LRLDI – 100% owned); (3) AB Leisure Global, Inc. (ABLGI – 100%); (4) First Cagayan Leisure 
and Resort Corporation (FCLRC – 69.68% owned); (5) Bingo Bonanza (HK) Ltd. (BBL – 60% owned); and (6) Blue Chip 
Gaming and Leisure Corporation (BCGLC – 70% owned). Based on PFRS 3, Business Combination, LRWC has not 
amortized the goodwill on its investments in its subsidiaries. Instead, PFRS 3 requires for an annual test for goodwill 
impairment. On the basis of the test for impairment of goodwill, there is no need to provide for allowance for impairment for 
the first quarter of 2012. 

 
LRWC’s total operating expenses amounted to P6.8 million and P7.5 million during the first quarter of 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.  The decrease of P0.7 million is mainly attributable to the overall financial prudence implemented by the Group. 
The Company is concentrating its efforts towards the expansion of the Group’s operations, thereby necessarily 
implementing its cost cutting measures to its own operations.     

 
Starting 2009, LRWC discontinued recording its 30% share in losses from Binondo Leisure Resources, Inc. as its 
investment balance has already been consumed. 
 
ABLE Operations 
 
Revenues 

 
ABLE generated total sales of P972.1 million for the first quarter of 2012, which is a P93.5 million or 10.6% growth from the 
P878.7 million total sales for the same period in 2011.  The increase in total sales is due to the increase in sales of 
Electronic Bingo and Rapid Bingo, partly offset by the decrease in the sales of Traditional Bingo, Pull Tabs and Instant 
Charity Bingo.  

 
The traditional bingo remains the Company’s principal product line with a sales contribution in the first quarter of 49.9% to 
total sales.  Sales for the first quarter of  2012 was P485.1 million, a decrease of P33.1 million or 6.4% from P518.3 million 
during the same period in 2011.  

 
E-bingo total sales for the first quarter of 2012 amounted to P 371.2 million, an increase of P129.4 million or 53.5% from 
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P241.9 million sales during the same period in 2011. The growth in sales was due to the opening of several new bingo 
outlets during the last quarter of 2012 and first quarter of 2011. As of March 31, 2012, there were a total of 3,146 E-bingo 
machines in 54 bingo parlors as compared to 2,287 E-bingo machines in 43 bingo parlors in the first quarter of 2011. 

 
Rapid bingo total sales contributed P113.2 million or 11.6% to total sales for the first quarter of 2012 as compared to P110.9 
million or 12.6% contribution to total sales for the same period last year. There was an increase of P2.3 million or 2.1% due 
to the higher sales generated per terminal.  As of March 31, 2012, there were a total of 78 Rapid bingo terminals in 63 bingo 
parlors as compared to 82 Rapid bingo terminals in 68 bingo parlors for the first quarter of last year.   

 
During the first quarter of 2012, Pull Tabs contributed P2.2 million as compared to P 4.4 million for the same period last 
year. 

 
Sales from the ICBG2 scratch cards contributed P0.4 million to total sales during the first quarter of 2012 as compared to 
P3.2 million for the same period last year.    

 
Expenses 

 
ABLE’s consolidated costs and operating expenses for the first quarter of 2012 of P582.0 million decreased by P4.0 million 
or 0.7% from P586.0 million in 2011. The decrease in expenses can be attributed to the following: (1) Payout of P20.7 
million or 5.5% due to lower Traditional Bingo sales, (2) Employees’ Benefit of P3.2 million or 11.4% due to management’s 
continuous implementation of ABLE’s cost reduction program and (3) Cards and Supplies of P0.9 million or 9.4% owing to 
the decrease in sales of Traditional Bingo. These decreases were offset by the following increases in expenses mainly due 
to the opening of several bingo outlets: (1) Rentals of P4.5 million or 8.9%; (2) Depreciation of P5.3 million or 42.5%; (3) 
Taxes and Licenses of P2.0 million or 34.0%; (4) Communication and Utilities of P4.0 million or 10.8% and (5) “Others – 
Net” account of P4.1 million or 44.8%.  

 
“Interest expense & others – net” decreased by P0.7 million or 17.9% mainly due to lower bank loan balances. 

 
Corporate Income Tax 

 
Effective November 1, 2005, Republic Act No. (R.A.) 9337, “An Act Amending the National Internal Revenue Code, as 
Amended, with Salient Features,” particularly Section 27 (c) , excluded PAGCOR from the provision which identifies 
government-owned or controlled corporations or agencies exempted from the thirty five percent (35%) corporate income 
tax. 

 
The management believes that ABLE’s payment of 5% Franchise Tax to the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) is effectively 
equivalent to the payment of corporate income tax.  Based on consultations with tax advisers, the management also 
believes that the collection of income tax in addition to the 5% Franchise Tax has no legal basis. 

 
Pursuant to P.D. 1869, also known as PAGCOR Charter and as amended by R.A. 9487, the 5% Franchise Tax shall be in 
lieu of all kinds of taxes, levies, fees or assessments of any kind, nature or description, levied, established or collected by 
any municipal, provincial, or national government authority. 

 
In accordance with PAGCOR’s directives, the Company continues to abide by the provisions of P.D. 1869 (as amended by 
R.A. 9487) whereby it pays the 5% Franchise Tax. 

 
In view of the above, management has not provided for provision for income tax for the first quarters of 2012 and 2011. 
 
Net Income 

 
ABLE posted a consolidated net income (net of minority interest) of P36.2 million for the first quarter of 2012, an increase of 
P17.3 million or 91.5% from the P18.9 million net income for the same period in 2011. The increase in net income is due 
mainly to the growth in revenues coupled with a decrease in operating expenses. 
 
FCLRC Operations 
 
The Cagayan Economic Zone Authority (CEZA), mandated by law to manage Cagayan Special Economic Zone and Free 
Port (CSEZFP), has authorized FCLRC to license, regulate and supervise the operations of registered online gaming 
enterprise in CSEZFP. FCLRC, on behalf of CEZA, can issue two types of licenses: (1) interactive gaming licenses which 
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cover all types of online gaming including casinos, lotteries, bingo, sportsbooks; and (2) restrictive licenses which limit the 
offerings to sports betting only. As the master licensor, FCLRC is entitled to half of the gaming levy imposed by CEZA on 
the gaming operators in the CSEZFP. 

 
FCLRC generated P129.2 million gross revenues for the first quarter of 2012, representing a P59.5 or 85.4% increase from 
last year’s first quarter of P69.7 million. The increase in revenues is attributable to the increase in the locators’ revenues in 
addition to the increase in the number of operating locators.  For the period ending March 31, 2012, there were 64 licensed 
locators – 54 of which are operational and 10 are non-operational while for the period ending March 31, 2011, there were 90 
licensed locators – 49 of which are operational and 41 non-operational.  During the first quarter of 2011, hosting fees from 
restrictive and interactive gaming locators contributed 83.0% to total revenues or P 107.2 million, while license application 
and renewal fees accounted for P22.0 million or 17.0%, as compared to the first quarter of 2010, wherein hosting fees 
contributed 80.2% to total sales or P 55.9 million while application fees contributed 19.8% to total sales or P 13.8 million for 
the same period effecting a growth of P 51.3 million or 91.8% and P 8.2 million or 59.3% for hosting fees and application 
fees respectively.   

  
FCLRC posted a net income of P 52.4 million for the first quarter of 2012, a P 23.0 million or 78.2% increase versus last 
year’s P29.4 million.  Total cost and operating expenses of P 32.9 million increased by P 14.7 million or 81.0% from last 
year’s P18.2 million.  The increase is mainly due to the Company’s efforts to provide a more efficient service to its locators 
operating in the CSEZFP and other reasons as stated: (1) Administrative salaries and benefits of P 4.4 million or 79.0%, (2) 
Rent of P0.6 million or 19.6% owing to the straight line method accrual; (3) Professional Fees of P 1.3 million or 37.7%; (4) 
Depreciation of P0.8 million or 22.4% attributable to accelerated depreciation of the airstrip;  (5) Communication of P 0.5 
million or 24.9%; (6) Taxes and Licenses of P 0.1 million or 63.9% and (7) “Others” Expenses of P 7.0 million or 4422.4% 
mainly due to the enhanced marketing programs implemented to attract more locators. The growth of P5.9 million or 85.5% 
in the resulting net income in the “Other Income (Expense) account” is mainly due to the increase in the net income of First 
Cagayan Converge Data Center, Inc. (FCCDCI) as well as an increase in the Other Income attributable to the rental income 
derived from gaming facility as agreed upon with locators. 

 
FCCDCI, a 60% owned subsidiary of FCLRC, posted a net income of P 14.0 million and P7.3 million during the first quarters 
of 2012 and 2011, respectively; a P 6.7 million or 91.3% improvement due to higher posted revenues partially offset by an 
increase in direct costs and operating expenses. 

 
LRLDI Operations 

 
In 2010, LRLDI has completed its construction of the CyberPark building intended for lease.  Accordingly in the same year, 
LRLDI entered into various lease agreements as lessor, with lease terms ranging from monthly to five (5) years. 

 
LRLDI is also committed in supporting the development of CSEZFP.  In executing an agreement with Cagayan Premium 
Ventures Development Corporation (CPVDC) and Cagayan Land Property Development Corporation (CLPDC), LRLDI has 
established its support by investing funds into the Lal-Lo Airport Project, CEZFP International Airport Project and other 
facilities within the CSEZFP.  These projects aim to improve and further advance CSEZFP into a self-sustaining industrial 
zone. 

 
During the first quarter of 2012, total rental income amounted to P2.3 million as compared to P4.3 million during the same 
period last year. The decline of P2.0 million or 46.5% is attributable to the rental discounts given to certain lessees.  Total 
operating expenses amounted to P 0.5 million and P0.4 million for first quarters of 2012 and 2011, respectively.  

 
ABLGI Operations 

 
ABLGI has been engaged by Belle Corporation, through its subsidiary, Premium Leisure and Amusement, Inc. (PLAI), to act 
as operator and manager of its casino under the license issued by PAGCOR.  As operator and manager of the casino, 
ABLGI, shall exercise supervision, direction and responsibility for the operation of the casino operations in behalf of PLAI 
pursuant tot the Provisional License issued by PAGCOR. Also under the Operating Agreement, the Company shall ensure 
the acquisition or construction of additional gaming, hotel and theater facilities and equipment. 

 
ABLGI started its business operations at the end of the first quarter of 2011, thus, it incurred minimal pre-operating 
expenses of P0.4 million.  In the same quarter of 2012, however, the operations of the casino have not yet started.  ABLGI’s 
pre-operating expenses amounted to P43.2 million. These expenses mainly pertains to the  rental of land of which the 
construction of the building is still on-going, professional fees due to hiring of several consultants to facilitate the outfitting 
and furnishing of the casino and other related expenses in line with the Company’s objective to create a world class gaming 
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facility. 
 
BCGLC Operations 
 
The Group acquired 70% of BCGLC’s outstanding capital stock on April 27, 2011.  BCGLC operates a Slot Arcade at the 
King’s Royale Hotel and Leisure Park, Olongapo-Gapan Road, Macabacle, Bacolor, Pampanga under a license issued by 
the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR). 

 
BCGLC generated gross revenues from slot machines totaling P12.0 million during the first quarter of 2012. Total operating 
expenses amounted to P8.6 million. It contributed net income of P1.6 million to the Group (70% of BCGLC’s net income of 
P2.3 million for the first quarter of 2012). 
 
BBL Operations 
 
BBL was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance of Hongkong.  Its primary purpose is to engage in the business of 
gaming, recreation, leisure and lease of property.  It started its commercial operations last March 5, 2012. 

 
BBL generated gross revenues from its electronic bingo club operations amounting to P 0.06 million during the first quarter 
of 2012.  Total operating expenses amounted to P9.6 million.  Thus, it posted a net loss of P9.5 million during the first 
quarter of 2012. 

 
LRWC Consolidated Net Income 

 
As a result of the foregoing developments, LRWC posted a consolidated net income of P21.0 million for the first quarter of 
2012, a P13.3 million or 38.8% decrease from the P34.3 million consolidated net income of the same period last year. The 
decrease is mainly due to the pre-operating expenses incurred by ABLGI.  Excluding the said expenses, the consolidated 
net income of LRWC would have amounted to P64.2 million in the first quarter of 2012 and P34.7 million during the same 
period in 2011.  

 
Financial Condition – March 31, 2012 vs. December 31, 2011 

 
On a consolidated basis, the Balance Sheet of Leisure & Resorts World Corporation (LRWC) and its subsidiaries, ABLE, 
FCLRC, LRLDI, ABLGI, BCGLC and BBL remain strong. Total assets as of March 31, 2012 amounted to P3,670.0 million 
which decreased by  P32.4 million or 0.9% from P3,702.4 million as of December 31, 2011.  Decreases in assets are 
attributable to the following: (1) Cash of P59.0 million mainly due to ABLGI’s pre-operating expenses; (2) Due from Related 
Parties – Net of P22.5 million mainly due to reclassification of accounts. These decreases were partly offset by the following 
increases: (1) Bingo cards and Supplies of P1.2 million due to ABLE’s increase in level of inventory to support their new 
gaming dynamics and (2) Investment and Advances – Net of P37.7 million due to on-going projects which will benefit the 
Group in the future.    

 
Total Liabilities decreased by P66.0 million primarily due to FCLRC and ABLE’s partial settlement of trade and other 
payables in addition to ABLE’s loan principal payments.    

 
Cash Flows – Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 vs. March 31, 2011 

 
Cash balance as of March 31, 2012 of P885.7 million increased by P 688.8 million or 350.4% from P196.6 million for the 
same period last year. The improvement is mainly due to the higher beginning balance of cash provided by financing 
activities due to the deposit for future subscription by third parties made last year. 

  
Key Performance Indicators 

 
The Company monitors its performance and benchmarks itself to prior years’ results in terms of the following indicators: 

 
                   ________As Of_________________ 
            March 31, 2012                    December 31, 2011 
 

Liquidity 
      Current  186% 181% 

Leverage Ratio 
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      Debt to Equity Ratio    32%   34% 
      
                          For the Three Months Ended _    __      
            March 31, 2012                        March 31, 2011 
 

Activity Ratio 
      Rate of Payout to Net Revenue            50.0%              57.3% 
              
  Profitability Ratio 
  Return on Average Equity                                                        0.8%                1.9% 
      Return on Average Assets              0.6%                1.4% 
 
 The manner by which the Company calculates the above indicators is as follows: 
 

  
 

The Company believes that the measure of its Liquidity through the Current Ratio is indicative of its ability to convert its 
asset resources into cash in order to pay current obligations. Generally, the higher the ratio, the better is the liquidity of the 
Company.  As of the first quarter ended in 2012, the Company posted a current ratio of 186%; an increase of 5% from 181% 
as of the year ended December 31, 2011. 

 
The Leverage Ratio measures the effectiveness of the Company’s financing decisions and risk taking as shown in the Debt 
to Equity Ratio.  It is the relationship between the total debts of the Company and its total stockholders’ equity.  It measures 
the total riskiness of the firm in terms of its ability to service both interest and principal payment commitments. The higher 
the ratio, the higher is the Company’s leverage.  As of the first quarter ended in 2012, the Company reported a debt to 
equity ratio of 32% or a decline of 2% from 34% during the year ended December 31, 2011.  

 
The Rate of Payout to Net Revenues (Payout Turn-over) is a measure of the Company’s efficiency by which it uses its 
resources to attain its objectives. It determines the effectiveness of the Company’s programmed games to generate 
revenues. As of the first quarter ended in 2012, the Payout Turn-over is at 50%, a decrease of 7.3% as compared to 57.3% 
during the same period last year.  

 
The Company measures its profitability in two-ways: (1) Return on Average Equity and (2) Return on Average Assets.  The 
Return on Average Equity measures the residual income that accrues to the stockholders of the Company, while the Return 
on Average Assets measures the effectiveness of the management of asset resources to produce income.  As of the first 
quarter ended in 2012, the Company’s Return on Average Equity is 0.8% while the Return on Average Assets is at 0.6% as 
compared to 1.9% and 1.4% respectively during the same period in 2011. 
 
The Company and its subsidiaries: 
 

Key Performance Indicator  Formula 
          
Current Ratio    Current Assets   
      Current Liabilities   
             
Debt to Equity Ratio    Total Liability   
      Stockholders' Equity   
             
Rate of Payout to Net Revenues    Payout   
      Net Revenues   
             
Return on Average Equity  Net Income   
      Average Equity   
             
Return on Average Assets  Net Income   
      Average Total Assets   
            

2012 2011 
 

1,508,437,695 
812,138,403 

 

 
1,581,038,642 
873,744,107 

 
 

880,804,255 
2,789,152,146 

 

 
946,824,337 

2,755,534,069 
 

353,844,252 
707,945,561 

 

374,563,741 
653,545,771 

 
20,985,238 

2,772,343,107 
 

34,313,472 
1,764,869,305 

 
20,985,238 

3,686,157,403 
 

34,313,472 
2,490,826,263 
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f) Have no known trends or any demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in or that are likely to 
result in the liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way; 

g) Have no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including 
any default or acceleration of an obligation; 

h) Have no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and 
other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period; 

i) Have not breached any loans, leases or other indebtedness or financing agreement; and 
j) Have no material commitment for capital expenditure, aside from those already discussed as continuous 

development of new bingo parlors. 
 
 
Plans for 2012 

  
As in previous years, ABLE plans to expand by applying for permits to open new bingo parlors in high traffic areas, 
specifically in new SM and Robinson’s Malls/Supercenters and several bingo outlets with smaller area in Metro Manila. 

 
FCLRC plans to invite and qualify more licensed and operating locators by the end of the year.  Major capital expenditures 
shall mainly be pertaining to the development of the information technology (IT) and telecommunications facilities of 
CSEZFP and the development of Cagayan Business Park.  

 
LRLDI plans to continue investing into the Lallo Airport Project of CPVDC for the following year in keeping with their 
commitment to support the development of CSEZFP.  

 
BCGLC intends to intensify their marketing campaign to increase foot traffic in the casino as well as extend their operating 
hours. 

 
ABLGI plans to execute the necessary build-ups leading to the anticipated soft opening of the casino by the third quarter of 
2012. 

 
BBL has initiated sales and marketing projects to boost membership sign-ups and sales. 

  
 Financial Statements 
 
 The Annual Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 2011 and the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements for the 

first quarter of 2012 are presented separately to form part of this information package. 
 
 Information on Independent Accountant and other Related Matters 
 
 External Audit Fees and Services 
  

The aggregate fees billed and paid by registrant in favor of its External Auditors for Audit and Audit Related Fees is Pesos: 
Four Million Three Hundred Sixty Two Thousand and Sixty Four (P4,362,064.00) for the fiscal year 2011 and Three Million 
Three Hundred Thousand (P3,300,000.00) for the fiscal year 2010. These fees comprise the audit and audit related 
services rendered in favor of registrant and its subsidiaries. 

  
 Except for the fees indicated above, there were no tax fees or all other fees billed or paid to registrant’s External Auditors for 

the last two (2) fiscal years. 
  
 The audit plan, including the corresponding audit fees, is submitted by the external auditors to the Company’s Audit 

Committee for review. The Audit Committee evaluates and approves the audit fees on the basis of reasonableness, scope 
of work, inflationary increase and the prevailing market price for such services in the audit industry. If the Audit Committee 
finds the audit plan and audit fees are in order, these are presented and recommended for final approval of the Board of 
Directors. As regards to services that may be rendered by the external auditor other than the audit of financial statements, 
the scope of and payment for the same are subject to review, evaluation and approval by the Board of Directors. 

   
 Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
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 KMPG Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPA’s served as Company’s external auditors for the December 31, 2011 and 2010 
Financial Statements. Their re-appointment was approved during the Company’s annual stockholders’ meeting held on July 
29, 2011. 

 
There were no disagreements with independent accountants on accounting and financial disclosures. 
 
Compliance with Leading Practice on Corporate Governance 
 

The Board of Directors of LRWC and its subsidiaries declares that: 
 

(a) The evaluation system established by the company measures and determines the level of compliance of the 
Board of Directors and top-level management with its Manual of Corporate Governance. All directors, officers 
and employees complied with all the leading practices and principles on good corporate governance 
embodied in this manual. 

 
(b) There are measures being undertaken by the company to fully comply with the adopted leading practices on 

good corporate governance. All members of the Board of Directors including officers have completed and 
were duly certified to have attended a seminar on Corporate Governance. 

 
(c) There is no significant undisclosed deviation from the company’s Manual of Corporate Governance. 

 
(d) The current manual on corporate governance is addressing critical areas affecting the company’s operations; 

 
In as much as the Company’s business presently primarily pertain to the gaming operations of its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, AB Leisure and Exponent, Inc., the Company deems that the management of the various Bingo halls 
all over the country from which it derives its cash revenues from customers, is the more critical area of concern for 
the Company.  In view of the same, in addition to the Anti-Fraud Procedures adopted by ABLE, the Company’s 
Audit Committee conducts regular meetings with the Internal Audit of ABLE to discuss any significant findings and 
deviations from the established procedures. No such significant finding and deviations have been reported so far.   

 
SEC FORM 17-A 

 
The Company shall provide to the stockholders, without charge, on written request, the Annual Report of the 
company on SEC Form 17-A.  All such requests for a copy of the Annual Report shall be directed to:  

 
The Corporate Secretary 
Leisure & Resorts World Corporation 
26/F West Tower, PSE Center, Exchange Road 

    Ortigas, Pasig City     
 

SIGNATURE 
 
 Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the Issuer has duly caused this report to be signed on its 
behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized. 
 
      LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION 
                                    Issuer 

By:  

          
      RAUL G. GERODIAS  

             Corporate Secretary 



 

















































































































































LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31-Mar-12 31-Dec-11
(Unaudited) (Audited)

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents Schedule 1 885,318,462            944,275,312            
Receivables - net Schedule 2 370,025,784            366,538,712            
Bingo cards 18,918,329              17,707,392              
Prepaid expenses and other current assets Schedule 3 222,290,560            218,092,976            
Due from related parties Schedule 2 11,884,560              34,424,250              
Total Current Assets 1,508,437,695         1,581,038,642         

Property and equipment - net Schedule 4 402,279,624            403,903,285            
Investment property Schedule 5 126,709,950            128,655,680            
Investments and advances - net Schedule 6 238,294,122            200,613,926            
Deferred tax assets 64,536,733              64,536,733              
Goodwill - net 546,318,689            546,318,689            
Other assets - net Schedule 7 783,379,586            777,291,451            
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,161,518,705         2,121,319,764         

TOTAL ASSETS 3,669,956,401         3,702,358,406         

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables Schedule 8 678,304,782            733,376,679            
Short-term loans payable Schedule 10 88,506,492              99,677,716              
Current portion of long-term loans payable Schedule 10 25,209,626              24,255,696              
Current portion of obligations under finance lease 1,156,930                1,300,698                
Income tax payable 9,889,881                6,062,627                
Due to related party Schedule 9 9,070,691                9,070,691                
Total Current Liabilities 812,138,403            873,744,107            

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term loans payable - net of current portion Schedule 10 25,612,679              31,710,900              
Retirement benefits liability 38,558,763              36,632,288              
Rent deposit 4,111,800                4,111,800                
Obligations under finance lease - net of current portion 382,610                   625,242                   
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 68,665,852              73,080,230              

Stockholders' Equity 
Common Stock  - P 1 par value
     Authorized - 1,600,000,000 shares
     Issued - 999,877,094 shares 999,877,094            999,877,094            
Additional paid-in capital 1,114,028,556         1,114,028,555         
Translation gain (loss) 81,510                     11,839                     
Retained earnings 537,366,821            516,381,581            
Treasury shares (18,694,937)             (18,694,937)             

2,632,659,043         2,611,604,132         
Non-controlling Interest 156,493,103            143,929,937            

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,789,152,146         2,755,534,069         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 3,669,956,401         3,702,358,406         



LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Unaudited

2012 2011
REVENUES
Traditional bingo 485,199,540           518,263,239           
Electronic bingo - net 371,236,888           241,869,329           
Rapid bingo - net 113,177,974           110,901,641           
Service and hosting fees 129,184,526           69,679,631             
Pull tabs 2,157,060               4,392,180               
Instant charity bingo 437,100                  3,244,320               
Slot machines 12,031,215             -                              
Rental income 2,303,733               4,309,045               

1,115,728,035        952,659,384           
FRANCHISE FEES AND TAXES AND OTHER DIRECT COSTS 407,782,474           299,113,613           
NET REVENUES 707,945,561           653,545,771           
COSTS AND OPERATING EXPENSES
Payout 353,844,252           374,563,741           
Rentals 86,990,295             53,440,446             
Salaries and wages 48,600,953             41,912,516             
Communication and utilities 45,297,497             39,065,670             
Employee benefits 26,365,862             29,002,011             
Contracted services 37,021,184             28,456,931             
Depreciation and amortization 29,265,572             16,097,495             
Bingo cards and supplies 9,101,073               10,046,066             
Taxes and licenses 8,894,940               6,353,516               
Others 38,223,602             13,360,712             

683,605,232           612,299,103           
OPERATING INCOME 24,340,329             41,246,668             
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Equity in net earnings of a joint venture 8,382,434               4,382,626               
Finance expense - net (7,037,708)              (1,305,088)              
Other income 11,028,159             -                              

12,372,885             3,077,538               
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 36,713,214             44,324,206             
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 3,164,810               1,094,893               
NET INCOME 33,548,404             43,229,313             
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Foreign currency translation gain 69,671                    -                              
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 33,618,075             43,229,313             

Attributable to:
   Owners of the Parent Company 21,054,909             34,313,472             
   Non-controlling interest 12,563,166             8,915,841               

33,618,075             43,229,313             
EARNINGS PER SHARE 0.021                      0.040                      

INCOME PER SHARE IS COMPUTED AS FOLLOWS:
 a)  Income attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company 20,985,238             34,313,472             
 b)  Weighted average number of shares outstanding 999,877,094           849,877,094           
 c)  Basis (a/b) 0.021                      0.040                      

For the Three Months Ended March 31



LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Unaudited

Capital Additional Deposit for Retained Functional Treasury Minority
Stock Paid-in Future Earnings Currency Shares Interests Total

Capital Subcription Transalation
Reserve

Balance at beginning of the period 999,877,094 1,114,028,555 0 516,381,582 11,839 (18,694,937) 143,929,937 2,755,534,070

Disposal for the period 0

Deposit for future subscription 0

Translation gain (loss) during the period 69,671 69,671

Minority interests 12,563,167 12,563,167

Net income for the period 20,985,238 20,985,238

Balance at end of the period 999,877,094 1,114,028,555 0 537,366,820 81,510 (18,694,937) 156,493,104 2,789,152,146

Capital Additional Deposit for Retained Functional Treasury Minority 
Stock Paid-in Future Earnings Currency Shares Interests Total

Capital Subcription Transalation
Reserve

Balance at beginning of the period 849,877,094 128,881,859 0 625,861,621 0 (20,785,694) 106,426,042 1,690,260,922

Disposal for the period 12,237,452 12,237,452

Deposit for future subscription 93,750,000 93,750,000

Translation gain (loss) during the period 0

Minority interests 8,915,842 8,915,842

Net income for the period 34,313,472 34,313,472

Balance at end of the period 849,877,094 128,881,859 93,750,000 660,175,094 0 (8,548,242) 115,341,884 1,839,477,688

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2011



LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-11
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before franchise fees and taxes 426,761,311         332,343,860         
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 29,265,572           16,097,495           
Equity in net income of a joint venture (8,382,434)           (4,382,626)           
Interest expense 7,037,708             1,305,088             

Operating income before working capital changes 454,682,157         345,363,816         
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables (3,487,072)           24,224,215           
Bingo cards (1,210,937)           (4,118,509)           
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (4,197,584)           (14,773,964)         

Increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables (55,071,897)         (2,488,307)           
Income tax payable 3,827,254             1,094,894             
Rent deposit -                       2,347,000             
Retirement benefits liability 1,926,475             1,350,000             

Cash generated from operations 396,468,395         352,999,144         
Interest paid (7,037,708)           (1,305,088)           
Franchise fees and taxes paid (405,776,072)       (298,030,388)       

Net cash from operating activities (16,345,385)         53,663,669           
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment (27,641,911)         (37,022,352)         
Additions to investment property 1,945,730             (6,500,954)           
Decrease (increase) in investment and advances (29,297,762)         (4,594,244)           
Decrease (increase) in due from related parties 22,539,690           4,451,698             
Decrease (increase ) in other noncurrent assets (6,088,135)           (850,131)              
Net cash used in investing activities (38,542,388)         (44,515,984)         
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Availment (payment) of loans payable (16,315,515)         (26,895,767)         
Availment (payment) of obligations under finance lease (386,400)              (2,150,090)           
Deposit for future subscription -                       93,750,000           
Disposal (acquisitions) of treasury shares (0)                         12,237,452           
Translation gain/loss 69,671                  -                       
Increase in non-controlling interest 12,563,166           8,915,841             
Net cash provided (used) in financing activities (4,069,078)           85,857,437           
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (58,956,851)         95,005,122           
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 944,275,312         101,562,325         
CASH AT END OF PERIOD 885,318,461         196,567,447         

For the Three Months Ended



LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
1. The accompanying interim consolidated financial statements of Leisure & Resorts World Corporation (LRWC) and 

Subsidiaries are in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 
 
2. The same accounting policies and methods of computation are followed in the interim consolidated financial statements 

as compared with the most recent annual financial statements.  
 
3. Currently the operations of LRWC is very minimal and functions as a holding company.  However, it’s Subsidiaries, AB 

Leisure Exponent, Inc. (ABLE), engaged in bingo operations, and First Cagayan Leisure and Resort Corporation 
(FCLRC), engaged in licensing and regulation of online gaming, are operating on a daily basis including Sundays and 
Holidays, except on Maundy Thursday and Good Friday.  Both businesses are not seasonal in nature. Another 
subsidiary, LR Land Developers, Inc. (LRLDI), is engaged in realty estate acquisition, development and tourism. AB 
Leisure Global Inc. (ABLGI), a new subsidiary engaged in the acquisition and development of properties including 
management and operations of activities conducted therein particularly on general amusement and recreations, has not 
started commercial operations as of this date. Blue Chip Gaming and Leisure Corporation (BCGLC), a newly acquired 
subsidiary in May 2011, operates a Slot Arcade at the King’s Royale Hotel and Leisure Park, Olongapo-Gapan Road, 
Macabacle, Bacolor, Pampanga under a license issued by the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation 
(PAGCOR). On March 15, 2010, LRWC incorporated Bingo Bonanza Limited (BBL), as its 60%-owned subsidiary.  Its 
primary purpose is to engage in the business of gaming, recreation, leisure and lease of property.  BBL was 
incorporated under the Companies Ordinance of Hongkong. 

 
4. There were no items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income, or cash flows that are unusual because of their 

nature, size or incidents. 
 
5. Property and equipment, other noncurrent assets, and investments and advances are reviewed for impairment. There 

are no indications of possible impairment of these assets. 
 
6. There were no reported estimates in prior financial years and there are no estimates that need to be reported in the 

current interim period. 
 
7. LRWC and Subsidiaries do not have any issuances, repurchases, and repayments of debt and equity securities. 
 
8. On July 30, 2011, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the declarations of cash dividend equivalent to: a) P 0.03 per 

share payable to all common stockholders of record as of September 28, 2011 paid on October 21, 2011, b) P 0.025 
per share payable to all common stockholders of record as of January 30, 2012 paid on February 22, 2012, and c) P 
0.020 per share payable to all common stockholders of record as of February 29, 2012 paid on March 23, 2012. 

 
9. LRWC’s primary purpose is to engage in realty development focusing on leisure business.  However, as mentioned in 

note 3, for several years it had minimal operation and functioned as a holding company.  On the other hand, its five 
Subsidiaries, ABLE, a professional in bingo gaming in the Philippines, operates fifty two (52) bingo parlors nationwide, 
most of which are located in major shopping malls in Metro Manila and in key provincial cities, FCLRC, a master 
licensor and regulator of online gaming operating in Cagayan Economic Zone Authority (CEZA), LRLDI, owner of 
property being leased by locators in Cagayan Business Park, BCGLC, operator of slot arcade in Bacolor, Pampanga, 
under a license issued by PAGCOR and BBL, engage in the business of gaming, recreation, leisure and lease of 
property in Hongkong. 

 
10. There were no material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that has not been reflected in the financial 

statements for the interim period. 
 
11. There were no changes in the composition of LRWC during the interim period.  Likewise, there were no business 

combinations, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments, restructurings, and discontinuing 
operations. 

 
12. LRWC and Subsidiaries do not have any contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual balance sheet 

date nor do they have any current contingent liabilities or contingent assets.   
 
13. There was no existing material contingencies and any other events or transactions that are material to an 

understanding of the current interim period. 
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